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I. THONG TIN KHAI QUAT

e Tén giao dich: Cong ty Co phin Thuong mai Xudt Nhap khiu Thu Buc

Tén giao dich quée té: Thu Duc Trading and [mport Export Joint Stock Company
Tén viét tit: TIMEXCO

e Gidy chimg nhan ding ky doanh nghiép s6: 0301444626

o Vén didu 1¢: 124.000.000.000 dong

e Dia chi try s& chinh: 231 V4 Van Ngén, phudng Linh Chiéu, thanh ph6 Thn Bxc,
Thanh phd HO Chi Minh

o Sb dién thoai: (84-8) 028 38966819

e S& fax: (84-8) 028 38963210

e Website: www.timexcothuduc.com.vn

o M3 cd phiew: TMC

I. Qud trinh hinh thanh vi phit trién

Céng ty Co phin Thuong mai Xudt Nhap khdu Thi Dire dugce hinh thanh tir viee
sép nhip 02 doanh nghiép nha nude 1a Cong ty Vit tu Téng hop huyén Thi Dic va Cong
ty Thuong nghlep Téng hop Thu B vai tén goi la Cong ty Thuong mai Xuét Nhap
khau Thi e, dén ndm 2000 duge cd phén hoa va doi tén thanh Céng ty C6 phin Thuong
mai Xuat Nhap khau Thi Dire cho dén nay. I<& tir khi ¢& phin héa, Cong ty khong ngumg
m& rong mang luéi kinh deanh, phat tr ién thém nhiéu nganh hang moi. Hién nay. Cong

ty da co hé théng 24 Cira hang ban ¢ xing dau hoat ddng tai thanh phd Thu Bic, huyén

Nha Beé thuge Thinh phd HO Chi Minh va cde tinh nhu Binh Duong, Dong Nai. Binh
Phudc, Binh Thudn va tinh Tién Giang,

Ti thang 12 nam 2014, Cong ty (6 phan Thuong mai Xudt Nhap khau Tha Pie
chinh thire trd thanh cong ty con cua Tong cong ty Déu Viét Nam (PVOIL), hign dang
s& hitu 51,01% VDL cua Cong ty.

2. Cde mdic s kién quan trong

Ngay 27/03/2000; Cong ty Cé phan Thuong mai Xudt Nhap khdu Tha Dic duge
thanh lap theo Quyét dinh 56 OQJ{}DO;QB TTg ciia Thu tudng Chinh Phi. Vou diéu 18
ban dau 4 14 ty dong. trong do phan von Nha nude chiém ty 1€ 40%.

e Nim 2002: Ting VDL lén 18 ty dong.
e Nim 2004: Bén dau gid thanh cong 40% phén von Nha nude,

e Nam 2006: Tang VDL lén 27t JOTIL
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o Thang 12/2006: C6 phidu cua TIMEXCO dugc niém yét tai Trung tdm Giao dich
Chimg khoan Thanh phd H6 Chi Minh (nay 1a S& Giao dich Chig khoén Thanh
phé Hé Chi Minh).

o Nam 2007: Tang VDL lén 40 ty dong.

o Thang 5/2009: Chuyén niém yét sang giao dich c6 phiéu tai Trung tim Giao dich
Ching khoan Ha Noi (nay la S¢ Giao dich Chiing khodn Ha N§i).

o Nam 2010: Tang VDL lén 80 ty dong.

o Niam 2012: Ting VDL lén 124 ty déng.

3. Thanh tich Cong ty dd dut dugce trong nhitng ndm qua

e Nim 2008: Coéng ty dat Huln chuong Lao djng Hang Ba ctia Chu tich nudce va

dwoc Bing khen ciia Uy ban Nhén din Thanh phé Hb Chi Minh.
e Nim 2009: Cong ty duoe ting C& Thi dua cta Uy ban Nhén dén Thanh phé H

Chi Minh.

o Nam 2010: Cong ty dat Cap Thuong higu Chimg khoédn uy tin va duge Co Thi

dua ctia Chinh ph.

e Nim 2011: Céng ty duge ting Bing khen ctia Thii twéng Chinh phii va c& Thi dua

ctia Uy ban Nhan dan Thanh phd Hé Chi Minh.

e Niam 2012: Cong ty duoe ting Bang khen va Co& Thi dua ctia Uy ban Nhén dan

Thanh phd HS Chi Minh.

o 9 nim lién (2007 — 2015) Cong ty lién tue duge dédnh gia xép hang trong Top 500

Doanh nghiép Ién nhit Viét Nam.

o Dat giai “Sao vang dit Viét” cdc nam 2010, 2011, 2012 va 2013.

o Niam 2014: Cong ty dat Huan chuong Lao dong Hang Nhi do Chu tich nude trao

tang; duoc Bing khen clia B6 Céng Thwong di dat thanh tich hoan thanh xuét sic
cong tac kinh doanh nam 2014.

e Niam 2015: Cong ty duge ting Co Thi dua ciia Tap doan Diu khi Qudc gia Viét
Nam; dugc Bing khen ciia Uy ban Nhan din Thanh phé Ho Chi Minh vé cong téc

van déng qu¥ Vi nguoi nghéo giai doan 2001- 2015,

e Nim 2016: Cong ty dugc tdng C& Thi dua cua B6 Cong Thuong.

e (ong ty di lién tuc dat danh hidu “Tap thé Lao déng xuit she” qua céc ndm tu

nam 2001 dén ndm 2020.

s TR i —
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II. NGANH NGHE VA DIA BAN KINH DOANH
1. Nganh nghé kinh doanh

» Thuong nhan phan phéi xang dau, nhét, md, ..

* Kinh doanh. stra chita xe mady

» Kinh doanh sat thép xay dung

* Dich vu nha hang ti€c cudi, hdt nghi

= Kinh doanh dich vy kho béi

= Kinh doanh khac

2. Pja ban kinh doanh
Pia ban kinh doanh ctia Cong ty chi yéu tip trung tai thanh phd Tha Dirc. Thanh
phd Hd Chi Minh. Ngoai ra, Céng ty con co cac diém kinh doanh tai huyén Nha Bé thudce
Thanh phé H& Chi Minh va cac tinh Binh Duong, Pdng Nai, Binh Phude, Binh Thuén,
Tién Giang.

III. THONG TIN VE MO HINH QUAN TRI, TO CHUC KINH DOANIH VA
BO MAY QUAN LY
I. Mo hinh quan tri

Mo hinh quan trj Cong ty gdm: Pai hdi déng cb déng, Hoi dong quan tri, Ban kiém
soat va Giam doc.

- Pai hoi ddng b ddng bao edm tit ca cdc cb déng co quyén bidu quyét, 14 co quan
co thim quyén quyét dinh cao nhit cia Céng ty. Pai hdi dong cb dong bau, bai nhigm,
mién nhiém Thanh vién HDQT, BKS.

- Cac Tiéu ban truc thude HPQT: Tiéu ban Chinh sach phat trién, Tiéu ban Luong
thuéng.

- Blng dau BDH la Gidm déc Cong ty. 1a ngudi dai dién theo phdp ludt. chiu trach
nhiém diéu hanh moi hoat dong clia Cong ty. Gidm dde quan Iy va diéu hanh Cong ty
théng qua viéc phan cap. phan quyen cho cac Pho Giam doc va cac Trudng bo phin dé

gidi quyét cdng viéc cu the.
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V. PINH HUONG PHAT TRIEN
I. Muc tiéu chung

Cdng ty tap trung moi ngudn lyc dé phat trién nganh kinh doanh chinh 13 xang du.
d4y manh kinh doanh nhiing nganh hang. dich vu khic ngoai xing diu theo nguyén tic
dam bao hidu qua va bao toan vén, dim bao l¢i ich cho cac cb déng va nha diu tu; chung
tay bao vé méi trudmg va stre khde cong dong.

2. Chién liwpe phit trién trung va dai han
- Pau tu phat trién mang ludi ban hang, ndng cao thi phdn kinh doanh xang diu.

- Nédng cao ndng lyc canh tranh, ap dung chinh sach gid ca linh hoat, hop Iy, nam
bét thoi co kinh doanh, ning cao chit lrong dich vu va dép tmg nhu cdu da dang ciia
khach hang, dam bao tao ra sy thoa man, hai long cho khach hang, tang cudng tiép thi,
quang ba thuong higu.

- Da dang héa va phét trién san phdm méi. ddu tur khai thac cée dich vu tién ich tai
CHXD va cdc diém kinh doanh, ddy manh cac hinh thire thanh todn khéng diing tién mat,
lua chon déi tac ot dé hop tdc kinh doanh.

- Tang cudng cong tdc quan ly, gidm sat, kiém tra, quin ly ban hang, tiét giam chi
phi hao hut xdng dau, han ché rii ro trong kinh doanh. bao toan va gia ting hiéu qua s
dung von va 1ai san, ludn tudn thi cée chinh sach, quy dinh cha Nha nudce trong hoat dong

kinh doanh.

- Dinh ky va thudmg xuyén 14 chirc cac 1op tip hudn, bdi dudng trinh d6 chuyén
mén, nghiép vu cho CBNV, nhan vién ban hing; cai tién ché do tién lwong, thudng hop
ly déng thot dong vién. kKhen thudng kip thot cho céc cd nhén va tap thé NLD c¢6 thanh

tich tot trong hoat déng kinh doanh dé lam don bdy phét trién kinh doanh.
V. CAC RUI RO

Riii ro vé gii ditu: Gia diiu tho va xdng dau trén thé 2idi bién dgng lién tuc, rat kho
ludmg. phuc tap va phu thude nhiéu véu t6 nhu tinh hinh chinh tri. tinh hinh kinh té tai
cae nude nhu MY, Trung Quéde, chiu Au; didn bién nhu cdu va ngudn cung trén toan thé
oi6i cling nhu cdc yéu td tai chinh, tim Iy thi truong. Dé tmg pho, Ban Lanh dao Cong ty
chi trong cong tdc phén tich, du bdo va theo sat dién bién thi trudmg va co chinh sach
diéu hanh linh hoat.

Ruii ro vé diéu hanh kinh doanh xing dau (KDXD) cua Chinh plu: Hoat dong
kinh doanh cia Cong ty ¢ lién quan mét thiét v4i nhiing thay d6i, diéu chinh chinh sich
cua Nha nuéde, Pieu hanh KDXD cta Chinh pha trong nhitng ndm gin ddy da thé hién

su minh bach va tiep can thi trwéng. tuy nhién van tiém dn rui ro cho doanh nghiép.

Riii ro vé chay na, 6 nhiém méi trieong: Kinh doanh xdng diu 1a nganh nghé co ru
ro ca0 ve chay nd. hoa hoan, & nhiem moi trudng. . Khi sy ¢d xay ra sé€ de lai be luy ndng

10
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né tai cic CHXD va tinh hinh kinh doanh cta Cong ty. Dé han ché va kiém sodt rii ro
dic thu ndy, Cong ty di ddu tu, trang bi hé théng phong chay chita chay theo ding quy
dinh va mua diy dit cdc loai bao hiém rii ro tai san, bao hiém chay nd...

PHAN 2: TINH HINH HOAT PONG TRONG NAM
I. TINH HINH HOAT BONG SAN XUAT KINH DOANH NAM 2024

Ly TH NAM 2024
CHI TIEU BYT | upan - T kg | /TH
2023

1. San luong

- San luvgng KDXD m® | 126.034 | 127.100 | 128.443| 101%, 102%
- San luong DMN lit 84321 | 75.000| 80.809| 108% 96%
2. Doanh thu ty dbng | 2.539| 2373| 2489| 105% 98%
- Kinh doanh XD i 2428 | 2256| 2.398| 106% 99%
l'di‘:h ipagh; dish vy " 111 117 91 78% |  82%
3. Lgi nhuén truoc thué iy 15,30 10 12,75 126% 83%
4. Cic khodn ndp NSNN | " 18,00 25,19

3
a

Vé san luong:’
- San lugng xdng dau tiéu thy nim 2024 1a 128.443 m? , dat 101% so voi ké hoach.
Vé nganh hang khdc:

- Tinh hinh hoat d6ng kinh doanh tai Cira hang kinh doanh xe gin méy trong nim
2024 gdp nhidu kho khin do bi anh hudng nén kinh té cia ca nude: Doi séng kinh & va
mirc thu nhip ngudi dan khong 6n dinh nén din dén san lugng ban xe bi gidm nhiéu, thi
trudmg xe may dang trong tinh trang bao hoa.

Ve Doanh thu:

- Téng doanh thu ndm 2024 13 2.489 ty d(’ing dat 105% ké hoach nam. Trong do. doanh
thu xang dau 12 2.398 ty dong, dat 106% ké hoach nim; doanh thu céc nginh khéc 1a 91
ty dong, dat 78% ké hoach nam.

Vé Loi nhudn truée thué:

- Téng Loi nhudn trude thué nim 2024 13 12,75 ty dong, dat 126% so vdi ké hoach

nam.

I1. TO CHUC VA NHAN SU

» A -
1. Danit sach Ban diéu hanh
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@ ("'Jng Lai Thé Nghia: Giam doc
- Ndm sinh; 1978
- Irinh d§ chuyén mon: K¥ su Kinh e
- S6 ¢6 phiéu ndm giif: 2.605.730 cd phiéu (ty 1& 21%)
Trong do: + S& hitu ca nhan: 0 ¢ phiéu
+ Pai dién PVOIL s6¢ httu: 2.605.730 ¢d phiéu
¢ BaNghiém Thi Thanh Mai:  Pho Giam dbc
- Nim sinh: 1982
- Trinh do chuyén moén; Cu nhan Quén tr] kinh doanh
- 86 ¢b phiéu ndm gitt: 0 ¢b phidu (ty 1& 0%)
¢ Ong Nguyén Anh Tuin: Phé Gidm ddc
- Nim sinh: 1981
- Trinh dd chuyén mon: Cir nhin Ké toan
- 86 ¢b phiéu ndm gitt: 0 cb phidu (1v 1& 0%)
¢ Ong Bii Minh Hiép: Phé Giam dbe
- N&m sinh: 1982
- Trinh d6 chuyén moén: Thac sT Quén tr1 kinh doanh
- S6 ¢d phiéu ndm gitt: 0 cd phiéu (ty 1& 0%)
¢ Ba Vii Hién Linh: Pho Phong phu trach Phong Ké toan
- Nam sinh: 1983
- Trinh d8 chuyén mén: Cir nhan K& todn
- $6 ¢6 phiéu ndm gid: 0 ¢d phiéu (tv 1& 0%)

2. Nhitng thay déi trong Héi dong quén tri va Ban diéu hinh Céng ty
- Ong P& Hoang Phiic thdi gitt chire Cha tich Hoi ddng quan tri va théi tham
gla Ho1 df"mg quan tri dé nghi huu tir ngay 01/07/2024.
- Ong Neguyén Buc Thing gitr chire Chu tich Hai déng quan tri chuyén trach
cia CBng ty ké tir ngdy 22/7/2024
3. Chinh sich dbi véi ngwoi lao dong
3.1. Co cdu lao dong (tinh dén 31/12/2024)

¢ Tong s0 lao dong trong Cong ty: 264 ngudi. trong do:

1

Ngudi dic¢u hanh doanh nghi€p: 07 nguoi

Cdng nhdn vién chuyén moén nghiép vu, phuc vu, bao vé: 57 ngudi

Cong nhan vién tnre tiép Kinh doanh: 200 nguoi.

- 56 c¢an bd nhdn vién ¢o trinh dd Pai hoc va Cao dang la: 88 ngudi; Thac si: 03
nguol

>

G To chie Bang, doan the:
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- DPédng bg: c¢6 44 dang vién
- Coéng doan co s6: cod 294 doan vién cong doan
- Doan co 50: ¢d 45 doan vién thanh nién

3.2. Chinh sdch dbi véi nguwdi lao ding

Trong nim 2024, mic du tinh hinh kinh doanh ctia Cong ty gip nhiéu kho khan
nhung Ban Gidm déc Codng ty da cd cdc bién phédp tich cuc chi dao thue hién nhiém vu
kinh doanh, dam bao én dinh thu nhap cho ngudi lao dong trong nim 2024. Pdng thoi
Cong ty van dam bao chinh sach déi véi nguoti lao d6ng theo Thda wdc lao déng tap thé
nhur;

- Trong nim, Céng ty di td chirc cho ngudi lao déng tham du céc 16p bbdi dudng
nghiép vu, bao gdm hoc nghiép yu PCCN&CNCH, nghiép vu kinh doanh xing diu
vd BVMT, 16p hudn luyén vé an toan vé sinh lao dong, quan Iy chét lugng, 14i xe
van tai... téng chi phi dao tao ude thue hién 12 359 triéu déng.

- Cong ty thye hién ding ché do, chinh sich cho Nguoi lao dong theo quy dinh cua
phép ludt va cham lo tot doi song vat chdt, tinh thin cho ngudi lao ddng theo Thoa
ué6c lao dong tdp, tham gia bdo hiém y té, béo hiém xa hoi, bao hiém that nghiép
theo diing quy dinh, ngoai ra mua bio hiém tai nan cho ngudi lao dong 24/24 gid,
kip thori trg cép kho khin dot xudt cho ngudi lao déng. Péi voi ngudi lao dong truc
tiép kinh doanh tai Cira hing xdng diu va van chuyén xang dau (tai xé, phu xé xe
tai bon) duge bdi dudng ché 46 ddc hai. Ngoai ra mdi ngudi lao ddng vao ngay sinh
nhat déu c6 qua ting va ngudi lao dong khi két hon ding Luit Hon nhin Gia dinh
duoc ting qua theo ding ndi dung Thoa udc lao dong tap thé.

e Hoat djng ciia Cong doan Co sd:

- Thudng xuyén chim lo doi séng tinh thin ngudi lao dong, xdy dung ké hoach to
chirc gdp mit Xuén Gidp Thin, i xi ddu ndm cho CBCNV-NLD Cong ty véi tong sb tidn
144.,500.000 ddng, tb chirc ngay XUAN DPOAN KET — TET SUM VAY nam 2024 déi véi
CBCNV-NLP truc bén hang, trirc an toan trong nhiing ngay Tét tai 29 dia diém kinh doanh
Céng ty véi 1.200.000 dong/phin qua (Banh chung dura kiéu, binh mirt, hat dura, gid cha...)
qua d6 tao khong khi vui troi don xuédn hing hai lam viée.

- C0 65 dai biéu nguoi lao déng Cong ty tham du Hoi nghi Nguai lao déng nam 2024,
Tbng két thuc hién thoa udc lao dong tip thé nam 2022-2023 va ky két Théa uéc LDTT
méi 2023-2025.

- Cir 11 Cén b Cong doan tham gia Hoc tip Nghi quyét Pai héi XIII Cong doan Viét
nam, Nghi quyét Pai h¢i VII Céng doan Dau khi Viét Nam do Cong doan Dau Khi tb chite
13/3/2024; cr cdn bd cong dodn hoc tdp true tuyén Nghi quyét 10 TW XIII ngay
20/10/2024 va Nghi quyét 18 TW XIII ngdy 01/12/2024.

rem———— - A e e A 4 e



TMC BAO CAO THUONG NIEN NAM 2024

- Cu 03 Cdn bg Cong doan tham du tap hudn (Cong tac Nt cong do Cong doan Dau
Khi to chire 28/3/2024: Cir 02 Can b Cong doan tham dy tdp hudn Céng téc Chinh séch
phap ludt do Cong doan DAau khi t6 chire ngay 12/06/2024,

- Cu CBNV cia cac CHXD/tai xé van tai xang ddu tham gia 16p hoc nghiép vu bao
vé méi trudng, hudn luyén nghigp vu PCCC&CNCH, nghiép vu van chuyén hang héa nguy
hiém...va cdp GCN hoan thanh khoa hoc.

- BCH Céng doan Cong ty td chire thim hoi doan vién cong doan ¢ hitu su... dé xudt
Céng doan Déu khi va Céng doan TCT hd tro tir Quy ~“Tuong trg Dau khi™ va “PVOIL
Chung mdt tim long™: 89.000.000 dong,

- Phéi hop cling chinh quyén t6 chirc tham quan nghi mét cho 153 lugt CBNV-NLD
cong ty 2 dot ta1 Vinh Hy.

- BCH tham gia ciing chinh quyén phan phéi bé sung luong vao cic dip L&, tét qua
d6 thye hién tét chirc ning tham muu gidm it viée thuc hién ché do chinh sach ddi voi
nguol lao dong.

- Dai dién BCH Céng doéan tham gia H61 nghi so két hoat dong SXKD 9 thang nidm
2024 tai Hué - Ba Ning.

e Hoat ddng ciia Doan thanh nién:

- Tham gia chuong trinh “cling PVOIL vé qué dén Tét” nim 2024, g6i banh chung
ctia Doan thanh nién PVOIL va trudng Pai hoc Su Pham Ky Thuat.

- Tham gia trdi nghi¢m tng dung PVOIL4U; tham gia déi thoai gitta lanh dao Tong
cong ty Déu Viét Nam véi doan vién thanh nién nhan dip thang Thanh nién va cac hoat
ddng phong trao khac cia Cong ty.

- Tham gia déi thoai gitta 1anh dao Téng cdng ty véi doan vién thanh nién nhan dip
thang thanh nién tai Tong cong ty.

- Tiép tuc bdi dudng gidi thidu doan vién uu ti cho Pang b dé tao ngudn phat trién
dang vién maol.

- Tham gia chién dich Ngay thir 7 xanh két hop cong doan cong ty.

- Tham gia cude thi “Kién thire ATGT va ky nang LXAT: tai 719-721 Kha Van Cén.
phuéng Linh Tdy. TP.Tha Pue

- H0 trg cac bé tham gia chuong trinh “Ngay he thiéu nhi PVOIL" tai khu du lich
sinh thai Vuon Xoai Dong Nai

- Tham gia hd trg chuong trinh hién mau voi chu dé = Nhigt huyét Ngudi Dau Khi™
fl 'l"éng Cong ty

- HO tro hudng din cai dat PVOIL 4U, di€u hanh Roadshow tai 14 CITXD

- Tham gia cac hogt djng do Poan cﬁp trén phat dong

IT1. TINH HINH PAU TU VA THUC HIEN CAC DU AN

- Pdu tu xy dung co ban:
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Timexco d2 trién khai sira chita céc Cira hang xdng dau va céc diém kinh doanh dap

ang nhu cau hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh, gém:

-+

+

+ 4+ o+

Néng nén CHXD 2: cdi tao stra chira CHXD sb 29 sira chita nha héang tiéc cudi
Roése Palace 746 Kha Van Can va trang bj Izip dit bang higu cho khach hang tai
Tp. HCM, Ddng Nai...;

Nang cép thay thé bg chi thi dién tit tai cde CHXD truc thudc dap tng nghi dinh
s6 123/20220/ND-CP

Hoan thanh viée cai tao, stra chita cic CHXD theo dé 4n 1114
Trién khai hd so stra chita Vin phong 740A Vo Nguyén Gidp, phutmg Hiép Phu
Xir Iy cée ton dong trong céng tac dau tu, hd so phép 1y cdc khu dit:

Tiép tuc hoan thién thi tuc gia han thdi gian st dung dét tai CHXD s6 5, van
phong céng ty 231 V& Vin Ngan, phuong Linh Chiéu, Thanh phé Tha Puec.
Phét trién hé théng: S6 CHXD phat trién méi trong ky: 3 CHXD (CHXD sb 26,

CHXD s 27, CHXD sé 29), dat 150% so v6i ké hoach 2024.

IV.

i A

TINH HINH TAI CHINH
Tinh hinh tai chinh e
cHi TIRU NAM 2023 NAM 2024 -
7 ﬁ:a\_
A = Wy WiE - .-} " f
Tong gia tri tai san 343.070.627.074 337.104.388.638 'Efﬁff
ol b=
Doanh thu thuin 2.539,694.355.817 il

2.489.000.782.722

Loi nhuén tir hoat dong

\\:{i

kinh doanh

9.966.508.758

12.166.213.405

Lot nhudn trude thué

15.338.435.024

12.753.847.514

Loi nhudn sau thue

11.888.052.149

10.024.304.981

Ty 1€ lgi nhudn tra cd tic 6% 3,5%
2. Cic chi tiéu tai chinh chii yéu
5 St S i Nim | Nam | Ghi
Cac chi tién DVT 2023 2024 hii

‘ [. Chi tiéu vé khd ndng thanh todn
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L L Tt S —————— S AR S

_ +Hé sé_tharlh_ toan ug.éi_]__l}gn: - B Il I |
Tai san Juu dong 5 | . l
léin .30 | 1,34
?\]U' ngan hdl‘l
o F He so thanh tuan nhanh - IR T e
Tai san luu dong Hd].’lE 3t kho . i
lein 0,80 0,98 5
Ng ngan han =__
2 Ch: reeu vé cor cdu vén ) | - _
+H¢sOng/Tong aisan % 4'% 35% __42,'49__ |
+ Hé sb ng/Vbn chi sé hzru % "6 62 | 73,89 |
3 Chi tiéu vé mmcr lwe hoat ci’oncr
__+ Vong quay hang tonkho: | b
Gia von han ban ;
B ldn | 36,60 | 50,52 |
S— Hang tonkhobinhquan | | " |
+ Doanh thu thuanfTonc tai san % B 4[} 7.38
4. Chi tiéu vé khd ning sinh loi ' |
- S ey ]
+ Hé sd Lm nhudn sau thué/Doanh thu thu__z_an ___% 047 | O 4
+ Hé s6 Loi nhudn sau thué/Vén chiisé hiu | % _ 6,12 | 5.17
+ H¢ :.0 Lgi nhudn sau thqef_'l_'_ong tai san B % 3,47 2,97
i Hé 36 Loi nhuan tr hoat ddng kinh doant
£ Pt it % | 039 | 049
Doanh thu thudn |

V. CO CAU CO BONG

| o 60| THOUDIEM 26/6/2024
1 CUXAL LW RING LON SLCO | TYLE/VDL
- _ PHIEU (%)
1 | Co dong trong nwoe 12.177.590 98,21
1 | Té chire 9.454.7350 76,25
Téng cbng ty Dau Vidt Nam — CTCP X ' s | "
_ L1 | tpyr) 6.325.730 51,01
Céng ty INHH MTV Dau khi Thanh X
| 9 b i
12 | phd 118 Chi Minh (SAIGON PETRO) Lgaz ol B
| Cong ty C4 phan PAu tu Phat trién Sai | x
2 Gon Co.op (SCID) _LO]?‘OOU_ L 8.2 »
1.4 | T chire khéc | 264860 2,14
2| i nhin | | 2.722.840 21,96
Il Cb déng nude ngodi | 22410 L9
L | To chie | 112.350 0.91
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| 2 | Canhan 110.060 0,89
L Tong cong 12.400.000 100

Téng s6 cé phiéu dang luu hanh: 12.400.000 ¢b phiéu
Tinh hinh thay d6i vén dAu tr clia cha s& hitu; Céng ty Co phin Thurong mai Xudt

Nhép khau Thii Ptic khong thay déi vén ¢d phin trong nim 2024,

VI. BAO CAO TAC PONG LIEN QUAN PEN MOI TRUONG, XA HOI
1. Bdo vé méi truong

- Van dong, tuyén truyén NLD ndng cao ¥ thire trach nhiém vé& bao vé méi trudng,
cé y thirc str dung tiét kiém, hiéu qua cdc ngudn ning lugng nhu dién, nude; giam thiéu
rac thai tai noi lam viée; giam thiéu céc hoat d6ng gy phat sinh chat thai va 8 nhiém moi
trudng, kiém sodt va xit Iy chét thai ding quy dinh, gop phin cai tao moi trudmg va st
khoe con nguoi.

- Thyec hién trdng cdy xanh tai céc diém kinh doanh va bén ngoai toa nha van phong
Céong ty dé giam lugng khi phat thai ra méi truong.

2. Kiem sodf méi truong lam vigc

- Cdng ty ludn tudn thil cdc quy dinh vé an toan — phong chéng chay nd, thudmng
xuyén td chue kiém tra cong tac dam bdo an toan PCCC tai c¢dc ctra hidng kinh doanh;
thirdng xuyén quan tam va cai tién moi truong lam viée xanh, sach dep, an todn, thoéng
mat cho NLD. Trong ndm 2024, Céng ty khong ¢6 trudng hop xay ra tai nan lao déng.

3. Chdmlo cho NLP

- T6 chitc kham sirc khée dinh ky cho NLD, td chie céc 16p dao tao, bdi dudng
nghiép vu chuyén mén cho NLD.

- Cong ty dd td chirc céc 16p tap huan vé an toan vé sinh lao dong cho CBNV va
NLB; trang bi bao h¢ lao dong cho NLD bao gdm quin o, gidy, bao tay, nén vai, 4o
mua,...

- Ban Giam ddc phéi hop cing Céng doan Céng ty chim lo luong, thudng cho NID
nhan céc dip L, Tet.

- Tb chiic chc hoat dong cham lo, tham hai, tang qua cho NLD nghi huu va NLD ¢é
hoin cénh khé khan dip Tét Neuyén dan; ting qua cho nit CBNV vio dip ky niém ngiy
Quédc té Phu nit 8/3, ngay thanh lap Hoi Lién hiép Phu nit Viét Nam 20/10; téng qua sinh
nhat cho NLP va ting quéa cho NLD khi két hén.

4. Doivoi cong dong va xd hpi

17
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- Cong ty da thyc hién dau tw, lap dat cac dudng ong cong nghé tai cac CHXD theo
dung tiéu chuan an toan va thudng xuyén kiém tra. bao tri, thye hign xu ly chét thai nguy
hai theo ding quy dinh cia co quan chire nang.

- Té chirc 1am thém vai ngay thir bay trong ndm dé ting hd cc quy “Tuong trg Ddu
khi”, quy “PVOIL chung mot tam long™, quy “Vi Thé hé tré” ciia Doan thanh nién. quy
“Nghia tinh dong ddi” cta Hoi cyu chien binh.

- Tham gia cac hoat dong xa hi tir thién do dia phuong phat dong: Ung hd quy vi
ngudi ngheo tai noi Cong ty ¢d co sd hoat dong kinh doanh; tham hdi NLDP ¢6 hoin céanh
kho khan: ting qua cho céc gia dinh chinh sich do Cong ty do dau. hd tro trén dia ban
thanh phd Tha Pic; tham gia thim héi tri an. (dng qua cho cdc gia dinh 6 cong voi Cach
mang. me Viét Nam anh hung nhén dip Tét Nguyén dan va ngay Thuong binh liéf si.

o e 744 e s i A s . N S i s e e b e e R e e e
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PHAN 3: BAO CAO VA DPANH GIA CUA BAN GIAM POC

I. PANH GIA KET QUA HOAT BPONG SAN XUAT KINH DOANH

1. Pic diém tinh hinh

a. Tinh hinh thé gidi:

Cac thanh vién OPEC+ duy tri hodc cét giam san lrong dé gitt gia diu & mirc cao,
nhung 4p luc tir cic nén kinh té yéu kém c6 thé giam nhu cdu. Du bio ciia EIA (M¥) chi
ra kha ning thdm hut nguén cung toan ciu trong quy dau nim 2024 khoang 800.000
thung/ngay. Gid dau Brent duoc ky vong dao dong tir 80100 USD/thiing

Trong nira cudi nim 2024, OPEC+ c6 thé ndi long han mite sén xuft, dén dén gia
dau gidm nhe, tuy nhién, cdc yéu td dia chinh trj va suy gidm kinh té toan ciu tiép tuc gdy
anh hudng khoé doan. -

Nhu cdu xing ddu ting chim lai, chii yéu tr Trung Quéc va cic nude phat trien.
IMF dur béo tang truéng kinh té todn cau giam xudng 2,9%, 1am suy yéu déng luc tiéu
thu dau mo. A

e 10

b. Tinh hinh trong mecc:

Gia xang dau trong nude chiu anh hwong lén tr dién bién gia ddu thé gisi. Chinh
pht va cac doanh nghiép dau moi lém tiép tuc thuc hién cac bién phap binh 6n thi trudmg,
dam bdo ngudn cung va kiém soét chét lugng.

Gi4 x4ng dau trong nuée dang bam sét dién bién thi truong quéc té. Tir diu thang
12, gid xing RON95 gidm nhe, duy tri & mic khoang 20.600 ddng/lit. Tuy nhién, gid
qude té van tiém an rii ro do sur didu chinh san lugng etia OPEC+ va bién dong dia chinh
trj, dit nhu cdu yéu tir nén kinh té toan ciu dang tao ap luc giam gia.

Nim 2024 tiép tuc 1a ndm khé khan d6i véi kinh t&. Bén canh d6, chu truong xdy
dung cac cong trinh trong diém ciia Thanh phd ciing anh hudng khong nho dén quy mé
cira hang xing diu cua Cong ty.

R

Nhitng tic dong clia nén kinh té cling dang anh hudng rit 16n dén cic mang kinh
doanh dich vy ngoai xing diu cia Céng ty nhu hoat déng tai Cira hang kinh doanh xe
gdn may va cho thu€ mat bang trong ndm 2024 gip nhiéu khd khén.

Két qua hoat dong kinh doanh niim 2024

> San luong xing diu tiéu thu ndm 2024 14 128.443 m?, dat 101% so véi ké hoach
nam.

» Doanh thu tir hoat ddng kinh doanh xing dau thuc hién nim 2024 12 2.398,31 ty
dat 112% so vdi ké hoach nim.

» Lgi nhudn truge thué nam 2024 1 12,75 ty déng, dat 126% ké hoach nim

[I. TINH HINH TAI CHINH

B
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Chi tiéu CBVT | Nam2023 | Nam 2024
| Co cdu tai san I T | -
| - TaisinnginhanTéngtaisin | % | 4984 | 513l
TaisinddiheoTéogtisin | % | 5016 | 4869
Co cdu von 1 o
- Ng phai tr&/Téng ngudn vén | % | 4338 | aes
| NowginhNopizi | % | ss2 02
N dai han/Ng phai tra % 11.48 9,78
mm:-W"m chu sé I}&u;‘Téng ngué}”r;w;%n % B 5662 SIS
| -Rnining tuh odnbignbinh | e |10 | 1
| - Kha nang thanh toian nhanh lan 0,79 0,98

2. Tinh hinh no phii tra

- Tong cdc khoan no ngdn han 1a 129,269,545,349 déong.

[l. PHUONG HUONG HOAT PONG KINH DOANH NAM 2025

Nin1 2025 du bo tinh hinh kinh doanh xang diu s& con nhiéu dién bién kho lutme.
Cong ty xay dung ké hoach nam 2025 cin cir vao tinh hinh thyc hién ndm 2024, trén tinh
thin cin trong va huéng din cia Téng céng ty Dau Viét Nam vé chiét khdu hoa héng,
gia ban xdng dau céc loai.

1. Cac chi tidu chinh

- San luong KD xang dau  :  127.000 m?

- Doanh thu © 1.909,1 ty déng.
- Loi nhudn trée thué : 10ty ddng.

2. Cie gidi phdp dé thwe hi¢n ké hogch kinh doanh nam 2023

|. T chire kinh doanh xdng ddu tuan tho cdc quy dinh cia Nha nude, chinh sach cia
Tdng cOng ty va phi hgp véi ddc diém, tinh hinh tai don vi; phin ddu gia ting sin lugng
kinh doanh trén ca 3 kénh phan phéi dé mo rong thi phan. song song v&i dam bao hiéu
qua kinh doanh;

2. Tap trung gia ting san lueng ban le thong qua cac CHXD hign hitu va phit trien moi
trong nim 2025. Dy manh trién khai chuong trinh PVOIL Easy. PVOIL B2B. PVOIL

BAO CAO THUONG NIEN NAM 2024
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4U va cac hinh thic ban hang {mg dung CNTT khéc cling véi da dang hoa céc hinh thiic
thanh toan phi tién mit (QR code, mabile money...);

3. Tiép tue tim kiém co hoi phat trién CHXD theo nhiéu hinh thire (thué dai han, tr diu
tw, hop tac diu tu, gidi thidu co hdi dé Téng cong ty d4u tw/thué thanh cong sau dé giao
cho DVTYV thué khai théc...) trén co s& cin dbi duge ngudn von phit hop véi quy dinh
vé chju trach nhiém vé hiéu qua ddu tw. Thirdng xuyén to chire kiém tra, gidm sat doi voi
cong tac diu tr CHXD dé dam bao ddu tu hiéu qué va khong dé xay ra thua 1&/mat vén;

4. Ddy manh trién khai du tw va kinh doanh céc dich vu phi xdng ddu (non-oil) tai
CHXD, tram dich vu xe tii dudmg dai:

5. Thyc hién nghiém tic Dé 4n 1114 vé “Néng cao chit luong phuc vu khdch hang tai
CHXD>;

6. Tudn thi tuyét déi cac quy dinh v& an todn - phong chdng chay nd, bio vé mdi tnromg,
dam bdo an toan cho con ngudi va tai san trong hoat dong SXKD;

7. Quyét liét xir Iy céc ton tai dé hoan thanh viée cdp Gidy ching nhan quyén sit dung dit
v quyen s hitu tii san gén lidn véi dét theo ding quy dinh phép luat;

8. Tdp trung véo linh vyc chinh 14 kinh doanh x3ng déu; Duy tri edc linh vyc kinh doanh
ngoai xing déu dé co co hoi m& rong san xudlt kinh doanh, d6ng thoi dam bao hoat dong
kinh doanh én dinh va hiéu qua.

9. Téng cudng st dung san phdm/ dich vu clia PVOIL Trans, Thai Binh PSC. Tiép tuc
ddy manh kinh doanh diu m& nhén PVOIL Lube;

10. Vé cong tac quan tri:

- Tang cudng kiém tra, gidm sét hoat dong ciia don vi, dam béo hiéu qua, béo toan va
phit trién vén; Kiém soét chit ché cong ng, khong dé phat sinh ng xéu méi, xir Iy dit
diém d¢ thu hdi ng ton dong, kho doi, dam bao tinh hinh tai chinh lanh manh va thuc
hién diy du cac bién phdp quan trj rii ro theo quy dinh:

- Tang cudng kiém sodt, tiét gidm chi phi, gi4 thanh, thuc hién chi phi phai gén véi hidu
qua san xuét kinh doanh 3

- Tiang cudng edng tac quan trj doanh nghiép, phdt trién thuong higu, ddy manh trién
khai céc dé tai nghién ciru khoa hoc va tmg dung cdng nghé thong tin trong quan Iy
diéuhanh nhdm ning cao hi¢u qua kinh doanh;

- Bﬁy manh viée trién khai cdng tac chuyén d6i s6 nham tang cudmg hi€u qua quan tri,
trong do dic biét quan tim dén cong tac hién dai héa tru bom nham tao nén tang vimg
chéc cho viée tmg dung cong nghé 4.0 trong kinh doanh ban 1¢ va da dang hoa cdc
hinh thirc thanh todn khéng tién mat;

- Rasoat/xdy dung va dp dung hé théng tiéu chi dénh gid két qua thuc hién cong vige
(KPIs) tai Pon vi nham str dung hiéu qua céc nguén lue hign cé va dap tng yéu cdu
phat trién cia Don vi;

P S N —
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V. BAO CAO PANH GI1A LIEN QUAN DEN TRACH NHIEM VE MOI
TRUONG VA XA HQOI CUA CONG TY
1. Tuén thi phap ludt vé bio vé méi truimg

Cong Ly thudng xuyén t6 chirc do kiém chét thal, nuée thii, do kiém cée chi tidu vé vi
khi hau, méi truong lam viée tai cac CHXD. Viée do. kiém dwoce co quan €6 tham
quyén thuc hién dinh kv méi nam 02 lan va két qua cdac chi 56 déu dat tiéu chudn theo
quy dinh cua phap lugt.

Cong ty d4 trang bi cdc thung rac co nhadn nhan biét loai rc sinh hoat hay rac thai ran
nguy hai tai cac diém kinh doanh truc thude va van phong Cong ty va duge cac don vi
chitc nang dén thu gom theo dinh ky.

Viée quan Iy chat thai rdn va chét thai nguy hai cong ty ludn tudn tht quy dinh phép
luat, dong thari cong ty ky két hop dong véi cac don vi ¢d chic nang thu gom xir Iy
dung theo quy dinh hién hanh.

2. Trach nhiém @61 v&i cong dong va xa hai

Tham gia c4c hoat ddng xa hoi tu thién do dia phuong phat dong; Cong ty 1am theém
tng hd, hd trg ddng bao thién tai, bio 1 va cdc hoat dong an sinh khac.

Té chire cac khoa dao tao, cée 16p tap hudn nghiép vu dé ning cao kién thire, nghiép
vu cho Cén bd nhan vién, ning cao ¥ thirc bao vé an toan vé ngudi va tai san, cic ky
nang img phd vdi tinh hudng khin cip vé an toan lao ddng- mdi truomg- PCCC.
Quan tam cai thién méi trrdng lam viée cho NLD, dam bao ste khoe, an todn v¢ sinh
cho NLD.

BAO CAO THUONG NTEN NAM 2024
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PHAN 4: PANH GIA CUA HPQT VE HOAT PONG CUA CONG TY

I. PANH GIA CUA HPQT VE CAC MAT HOAT PONG CUA CONG TY

Hoat ddng kinh doanh xing diu nim 2024 van tiép tuc gip nhidu kho khin. Do
mit v6i nhitng khé khin va thach thire, Cong ty ludn nd lyc phﬁn déu dé nang cao hidu
qua kinh doanh trong bdi canh chiét khdu thép, chi phi kinh doanh xiing déu ting cao.
Két qua kinh doanh cu thé nhu sau:

- Tbng san lwong kinh doanh xing ddu nam 2024 1a 128.443,12 m3, dat 101% ké
hoach ndm.

- Doanh thu nam 2024 14 2.489 tj dong, dat 105% ké hoach nam,

- Loi nhun truée thué nim 2024 13 12,75 ty, dat 126% ké hoach nam.

- Ké hoach phat trién hé th('"mg: trong nam Codng ty da thue va dua vao hoat dong mai
duge 3 CHXD, dat 150% ké hoach phat trién CHXD.

- Béo toan va phat (rién ngubn vén cia Cong ty, khong dé phét sinh céc khoan ng
xéu, khé doi.

- Bam bao an toan tuyét dbi trong céng tac an todn, PCCC tai hé théng CHXD truc
thudc;

- Tuén tht phép huat, thue hién diy di nghia vu véi Nha nuée, thue hién tdt trach
nhiém xa héi. Quéan tri cong ty cong khai, minh bach va dat lgi ich ctia Cong ty
trong su két hop hai hoa véi lgi ich ctia ¢d déng, khach hang va nguéi lao déng,

1. PANH GIA CUA HPQT VE HOAT PONG CUA BAN PIEU HANH

- Trong diéu kién kinh doanh con nhiéu khé khin trong nam 2024, Ban diéu hanh
Céng ty da c6 nhiéu giai phap quyét liét, kip théi, han ché céc thiét hai, rii ro trong kinh
doanh.

- Ban diéu hanh d trién khai thue hién cac nghi quyét, quyét dinh ciia Pai hdi dong
cd dong va HPQT mot céch kip thoi, ddy di vdi tinh thdn trach nhiém cao; duy tri ché
d6 bao céo dinh k¥ hang thang cho HPQT vé két qua hoat dong kinh doanh ctia Céng ty;
tham du ddy da céc cude hop HDQT va tham gia y kién véi HDQT vé viée thue hién céc
ké hoach, muc tiéu va nhiém vu kinh doanh ciia Cong ty.

- Ban diéu hanh luén bam sat tinh hinh thuc té cia Céng ty, didu hanh kinh doanh
mdt cach linh hoat, kip thoi, pht hop voi cha truong, dinh huéng cia HDQT, phu hop
v6i didn bién cta thi trudmg kinh doanh x@ng diu, 6n dinh hoat dong kinh doanh cua
Céng ty va @&Am bao viéc lam cho NLD va béo toan vén cho ¢b déng.

[II. CAC KE HOACH, PINH HUONG CUA HPQT

- Chi dao tip trung moi ngudn lic ddu tu phat trién nganh kinh doanh chinh la xing
dau, nghién ctu tim kiém co héi phat trién kinh doanh ngoai xdng du, ddu tu co s& vt
chit, mg dung cong nghé méi. ap dung cic phuong thire kinh doanh, hop tée, dau tu, ...

w B ]




TMC

BAO CAO THUGONG NIEN NAM 2024

e m—

Y O A

dé gia tang san luong xdng ddu qua cac kénh. ma rong thi phan diy manh céc hinh thic
thanh todn khong dang tién mat.

- Day manh cong tac kidm tra, gidm sat, thure hién tdt cac bién phap dam bdo an toan
tuy ét déi trong hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh: dam bao vé chit lwrong hang hoa. gia ca
canh tranh va ding quy dinh ciia Nha nudc vé quan |y gia xing ddu nhim nang cao hiéu
qua hoat dong kinh doanh va bao toan vin.

- Chi dao cong tac d4o tao, phat trién ngudn nhén lue dap img nhu cau phat trién clia
Cong ty, tang thu nhip cho nguoi lao dong, dam bdo loi ich cho cac ¢d dong va dai tac,
tiép tuc tham gia cac hoat dong an sinh xa hdi, bao vé mdi trudmg va stc khoe cong dong.
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PHAN 5: QUAN TRI CONG TY

I. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
1. Co edu Hpi dong quén tri
Hoi dong quan trj gdm 6 05 thanh vién:
o Ong P8 Hoang Phiic  : Chii tich HPQT dén ngay 30/06/2024
- Nim sinh: 1963
- Trinh @0 chuyén mén: Cir nhin Pai hoc Téng hop TP.HCM
- Chtre vy hién dang nédm git & cdc té chire khac: Khong cé
- S& ¢& phidu ndm gitt: 3.720.000 ¢d phiéu (ty 1& 30%)
Trong dé: + S& hiru ¢4 nhan: 0 ¢b phiéu
+ Pai dién PVOIL, s& hitu: 3.720.000 ¢b phiéu
»Ong Nguyén Pic Thing : Chi tich HDQT tir ngiy 22/07/2024
- Ném sinh: 1979
- Trinh d6 chuyén mén: Thae s7 Ludt kinh t&
- Chitrc vu hién dang ndm gift & cac t& chire khac: Khéng c6
- $6 cd phiéu nim gifr: 3.720.000 cb phiéu (ty 1& 30%)
Trong d6: + S& hitu ¢4 nhén: 0 ¢b phidu
+Pai dién PVOIL, s& hitu: 3.720.000 cb phiéu
» Ong Lai Thé Nghia : Thanh vién HDQT, Giam déc Cong ty
- Nim sinh; 1978
- Trinh d6 chuyén mén: K§ su Kinh té
- Chire vy dang nam gitr tai td chirc khac: Khéng 6
- 86 ¢b phiéu ndm gif: 2.605.730 cd phidu (ty 16 21%)
Trong dé: + S& hitu cé nhin: 0 ¢d phiéu
+ Pai dién PVOIL, s& hitu: 2.605.730 ¢ phiéu
o Ong Nguyén Quéc Cwirng: Thanh vién HPQT (Thanh vién khong diéu hinh)
- Nam sinh: 1980
- Trinh ¢ chuyén mén: Thac sT Quén tri kinh doanh
- Chirc v dang ndm gitt tai t§ chic khde: Gidm dbe Céng ty Cd phan Xang dau
Déu khi Sai Gon.
- 86 cb phiéu ndm gitr: 0 ¢b phiéu
o Ong Trén Céng Lanh: Thanh vién HPQT (Thanh vién khéng diéu hanh)
- Niam sinh: 1980
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- Trinh d§ chuyén mon: Thac si Ludt
- Chire vu dang ndm gir tai t6 chirc khéc: Truéng phong T6 chic Hanh chénh,
Truomg phong Phap ché Cry TNHH MTV Dau khi Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh.
- S& ¢d phiéu ndm gitr: 1.847.160 cd phiéu
Trong do: + S& hitu ¢4 nhan: 0 ¢6 phiéu
+ Pai dién Céng ty TNHH Mot thanh vién Dau khi Thanh phd Hb Chi
Minh (SAIGON PETRO). s& htu: 1.847.160 ¢6 phiéu (ty 1€ 14.9%)
a 'f)ng Pham Xuidn Phong: Thanh vién HPQT (Thanh vién doc lap)
- Nam sinh: 1987
- Trinh do chuyén mon: Thac s1 Tai chinh
- Chirc vu dang ndm gifr tai to chie khac: khéng cé
- S& cb phiéu ndm gitr: 0 ¢ phiéu (ty 1& 0%)
2. Cic Tiéu ban thupc HDQT
2.1. Tiéu ban Chinh sdch phit trién: gom cé 05 thanh vién
o Truéng ban: Ong Lai Thé Nghta — Uy vién HPQT
e (Cic thanh vién:

- Ong Pham Vian Tén — Trudng phong Kinh doanh

- Ba Vi Hién Linh —Phé phu trach Phong Ké toan
- Ong Ng6 Minh Thang - Phé phong Kinh doanh

- Ong Dinh Trung Diing ~ — Pho phong Dau tur

2.2. Tiéu ban Nhan su- Lwong thudng: gom c6 03 thanh vién
o Trudng ban: Ong Lai Thé Nghia — Uy vién HDQT
¢ Cac thanh vién:
- Ong Pang Qué Son — Trudng phong T6 chire Hanh chinh
- Ba Nguyén Thi Mai ~ Phé phong Té chire Hanh chinh

3. Hoeat dgng cia HDQT

- HPQT Cong ty thuong xuyén giam sat hoat dong ctia Giam dbe va cac can bd quan
li khac trong viée thue hién chire trach, nhiém vu dugce giao cén cir theo Didu 18 td chire
vi hoat dong ctia Cong ty, Quy ché vé to chire va hoat ddng ctia HPOQT. HPQT khong
can thiép vao céng tac diéu hanh hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh cta Gidm Dée, ludn tao
didu kién va ho tro Giam Pée trong viée thue hién hidu qua cde nghi quyét va quyét dinh
ciua PHPCD va HPQT.

- Thuong xuyén giam sat, don dbe va chi dao vide thue hién cice chi tiéu ké hoach
SXKD, chi dgo phit trién cac CHXD,

M
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- Chi dao, gidm sat viéc quan ly Long ng phai thu phai trd, xir Iy/thu hoi cong noa’no
tén dong trong kinh doanh, trdnh dé phat sinh ng xdu; chi dao xdy dung ké hoach tiét
kiém chi phi tai Cong ty,

Gidm sat va chi dao viée trién khai cac du an diu tu xay dung co ban: stra chita céc
CHXD va cdc dja diém kinh doanh; xit 1i cic ton dong trong cong tac dau tu, hd so phap
ly cdc khu dét; phét trién hé thdng cac CHXD.

- Chi dao viée xdy dyng va phé duyét dinh bién, ké hoach st dung lao déng va tién
luong ndm 2024, quyét todn quy tién lwong thue hién nam 2023.

- Tiép tuc chi dao thuc hién ra soét, sira ddi/bé sung cac vin bén quan li ndi b dé
phu hop v6i cac vin ban phép ludt méi ¢6 hiéu luc cia Nha nuwde va tinh hinh thue té cia
Cong ty; ning cao chét lugng phuc vu khach hang tai cac CHXD; ndng cao cong tac quin
tri trong hoat dong bdn 1€ tai cdc CHXD; ting cudng cdng téc phong chdng chiy néd, an
todn v¢ sinh lao ddng tai edc CHXD.

- HBPQT thutng xuyén phéi hop chit chd va hiéu qué v6i Gidm Péc vi Ban Kidm
soat trong viée trién khai cdc Nghi quyét ctia DPHDCD va HDQT; Gidm sat viée tudn thi
phap ludt va céc quy dinh ndi b¢ trong cong tac quan ly, diéu hanh hoat dOng cua Cong
ty. Céc Nghx quyet/Quyet dinh ctia HPQT ban hanh déu duge gul kip dén Giam Pédc va
thong bédo dén Ban kiém soat. Tinh hinh thuc hién céc nghi quyét/quyét dinh ctia HDQT
thudng xuyén duge gidm st va dinh ky xem xét danh gi4.

4. Cdc Nghi quyét/Quyét dinh ciia HDOT
Trong nam 2024, HPQT Céng ty d4 té chie céc cuge hop hode thong qua ldy v

kién cde Thanh vién HPQT bing vin ban v6i cde ndi dung chinh nhir sau:

I . A
srT | % Ngh';ﬂém“y"t Ngay Noi dung chinh
. Nghi quyét HPQT thong qua hop dong giao
| dich gifta Céng ty C phin Thuong mai Xuit
1 O/NQ-TMC-HPQT | 22/01/2024
e IHI-HEG L2023 | Nhp tchdia Thi D v6i Nius o6 lién quan.
Nghi quyét HDQT théng qua béo cdo két qua
! . . i .
23/01/2024 | kinh doanh thure hién nam 2023, ké hoach kinh
'Ill - - I * b
4 [ORTMCTBAT doanh nim 2024; ké hoach t§ chitc Dai héi ¢
ddng thuong nién 2024,
Quyét dinh HPQT vé vige thanh lip Ban t3
3 | 03/QP-TMC-HDQT | 19/02/2024 | chiic Pai hoi dong co dong thudng nién nim
2024,
Nghi quyét HDQT vé viéc thong qua ndi dung,
- = 0/02/2024 i
4 | UNQTMCHPQT |2 Z chuong trinh Pai héi cd déng thuong nién 2024,
Nghi quyét vé viéc bau Trudng Ban kiém soét
5 | 07/NQ-TMC-HPQT | 29/3/2024 ig = ' .
Céng ty.
uyet dinh HPQT vé viée chi tra lvong cho
6 | 08/QD-TMC-HPQT | 295372024 | 2 il ks 4
Truéng Ban kiém sodt.
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29/3/2024 |
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| chire Trudng Ban k1em soat.

| Quyét dinh [—TE)QT vé viée thay doi nhan sy gitt

10/QD-TMC-HDOT

| 16/4/2024

Qu}*et dinh HPBQT vé wec klm todn H(,)l dong
xét duyét cOng ng khach hang.

1 1/NQ-TMC-HDQT

| trurong thué lai quyén sir sung dat va tai san gan

Nghi quyét HPDQT vé viée phé duyét chu

lién v4i dat tai phudmg Biru Long, Bién Hoa,
tinh Ddng Nai dé lam dia diém kinh doanh xing
dau.

10

12/NQ-TMC-HPQT

05/6/2024

Nghi quyét HPQT vé viéc thong qua to chirc
Dai héi cé dong bit thuomg nam 2024,

13/QD-TMC-HDQT

10/6/2024

Quyét dinh HDQT vé viéc ctr can bo di cong tac
nudce ngoal.

15/QD-TMC-HPQT

21/6/2024

Quyét dinh HPQT vé viée thanh 1ap Ban té
chire Dai hoi ¢b dong bit thuong.

13

16/NQ-TMC-HPQT

- 28/6/2024

—

Nghi quyét HDQT thong qua két qua kinh |
doanh udce thuc hién 06 thang ddu nam 2024
Théng qua chon Cong ty TNHH Kiém todn An
Viét thuc hién kiém todn bdo céo tai chinh nam
2024 cua Cong ty; Thong qua ndi dung, chuong
trinh t& chtre Dai hoi c¢d déng bét thuemg td
chire vao ngay 22/7/2024. |

14

17/NQ-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

Nghi quyét HPQT vé viéc phin cong dng Lai
Thé nghia phu trich hoat déng cia Hai dong
quan tri (tir 01/7/2024 dén 22/7/2024),

18/QD-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

Quyét dinh HDQT vé viée quyét toan quy tién |
luong nam 2023,

16

19/Q0D-TMC-HPQT

28/6/2024

| Quyét dinh HPQT vé viée b sung chirc danh

cong viéc va diéu chinh hé so phu ¢dp trong
Quy ché Tra lvong cua Cong ty.

17

20/NQ-TMC-HPQT

1 09/07/2024

Nghi quyét bd nhiém lai can bd

[

2U/QB-TMC-HDQT

12/07/2024 |

| 25/NQ-TMC-HDQT

| 26/QD-TMC-HPQT

| 22/07/2024

Nghi quyét thong qua chi truong cho thué tang
4 Toa nha TMC tai 231 VO Vin Ngén, Phuong
Linh Chiéu, thanh phd Tha Prc.

Nghi quyét bdu Chu tich Hoi dong qudn tri,

| 01/08/2024

Quyét dinh bo nhiém lai cdn bo.

29/Q0D-TMC-HPOT

12/08/2024

Quyét dinh phén cong nhiém vu céc Thanh vién
HPQT Céng ty.

2 | 30/QB-TMC-HPQT ‘ 12/08/2024 QU} &t dinh th anh lip hoi dung xét duwel ban nq 1
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| Nghi quyét bé nhiém ngudi phu trach quan tri |

_TMC- 9/09/2024
23 | 33NQ-TMC-HDQT | 09/09/2024 | o

Quyét dinh bo nhiém ngudi phy trach quan tri

OP-TMC- 09/09/2
24 | 34/QD-TMC-HDQT 12024 A,

Quyét dinh phé duyét quy tién luong ké hoach

TN /
25 | 3TQD-TMC-BDQT | 257102024 |~ o004 i Cong ty.

Quyét dinh ban hanh Quy ché Céng b thong

. TMC-HDQT | 25/10/2024 | <7 7
6 |38/QP-TMC-HPQT | 25 tin cita Cong ty.

Nghi quyét thong qua bao cao thyc hién hoat =
27 | 41/NQ-TMC-HPQT | 07/11/2024 | déng SXKD 9 thang nim 2024 va ké hoach hoat plg
déng quy IV nam 2024,
Quyét dinh ban hanh Quy dinh Chuc nang, Xt
28 | 44/QD-TMC-HPQT | 20/11/2024 | nhiém vu, quyén han céc phong chirc nang ciia i

Céng ty.

5. Hogat dpng ciia cdc Tiéu ban thujc HPQT
Hoat dong clia céc Tiéu ban thude HDQT Iuén tudn tha theo dung quy dinh. quy

ché ciia HPQT.

'~ Tiéu ban chinh sach phat trién: tham muu cho HDQT vé chién luoe kinh doanh cia
Cfi‘:ng ty; tham muu cho HPQT vé viée ddu tur, phét tridén méi cdc cta hang xing
dau.

- Tiéu ban nhan sy, luong thuéng: ra soat, gép ¥ vé cdc chinh sach vé tién luong,
thuong cia Cong ty.

II. BAN KIEM SOAT

1. Co citu Ban kiém sodt
Ban kiém sodt gbm c6 03 thanh vién:

» Ong Nguyén Trong Binh: Trudng Ban kiém soét chuyén trich
- Nam sinh: 1979
- Trinh @6 chuyén mén: Cir nhan Kinh té
- 86 ¢b phiéu ndm gitr: 0 ¢b phiéu (ty 1& 0,00%)
Trong d6: + S& hitu ¢4 nhan: 0 ¢ phiéu
' + Dai dién sé hiru: 0 ¢6 phiéu
e Ba Ngo Phuong Hanh: Kiém sodt vién
- Nam sinh: 1974
- Trinh d6 chuyén mén: Ctr nhin Kinh té
- Chire vy hién dang ndm giit & cdc 6 chirc khéc: Phé Truong Phong Tai chinh Ké
todn Cong ty TNHH Mat thanh vién Ddu khi TP.HCM
- 86 ¢d phidu ndm gitt: 0 ¢b phiéu
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o Ong Nguyén Thanh Binh: [Kiém soat vién
- Nam sinh: 1962
- Trinh dé chuyén mén: Ctr nhan Tai chinh Ké toan
- Chire vy dang ndm giit tai t6 chite khie: khong ¢6
- 86 ¢b phidu nam gitr: 192.012 ¢d phiéu (ty 1& 1.55%)
Trong do: + S& hitu ¢4 nhan: 192.012 ¢ phiéu
+ Pai dién s& hirw: 0 ¢b phicu
2. Hoat dpng ciia Ban kiém sodt nim 2024

- Thyc hién ra soat, danh gia viée trién khai céc nghi quyéL quyét dinh ¢ia BPHBCD
va HPQT.

- Xem xét cong tdc giam sat eua HPDQT d¢6i voi BDH; dénh gis két qua thuc hién ké
hoach kinh doanh va cdng tac quan ly didu hanh ciia BDH: thim tra cac bdo cdo tai
chinh, bao cao kiém todn; giam sat danh gia tinh hinh tai chinh, tinh tudn thd, tinh hinh
quan ly, sit dung von, viée quan ly céng ng khach hang va kha nzing thanh todn ng cla
Cong ty.

- Giam sat viée thue hién Nghi quyét ctia Pai hoi ddng ¢b dong, Diéu 1€ Cong ty theo
quy dinh cta phap lujt.

[II. CAC GIAO DICH, THU LAO VA CAC KHOAN LOT ICH CUA HPQT,
BKS VA BGP

1. Lwong, thuwéng, thi lao, cde khodn loi ich

= Tong thi lao cia TVHDQT khong chuyén tréch thye hién nam 2024 1a: 216 triéu
dong (Hai trém mudi sdu tricu dong).
- Cha tich HPQT chuyén trach, Trudng Ban kiém soat chuyén trach huéng luong
va phu cép kiém nhiém theo Quy ché trd luong, tra thuémg cua Cong ty.

2. Giao dich ¢é phiéu ciia b dong npi bé: Khong ¢
Hop dong hodce giao dich v co dong ngi bo:

(iiao dich mua bén xdng dau vé&i cac don vi thanh vién cia Tong cong ty Déau Vit
Nam — CTCP (PVOIL) dé kinh doanh. PVOIL la ¢é dong lén ciia Cong ty C6 phin
Thuong mai Xudt Nhap khau Tha Dire, Tong tri gia giao dich thue hién trong ndm 2024
14 1.981.715.323.510 (Mot ngan chin tram tAm muoi mot (v, bay tram mudi Jim triéu, ba
tram hai muoi ba ngan, nam trim mudi ddng)

Giao dich mua xang dau tir Cong ty TNHH Mot thanh vién Dau khi Thanh phé Hb
Chi Minh (SAIGON PETRO) dé kinh doanh. SAIGON PETRO la ¢d déng lén cia Cong
ty Co phan Thuong mai Xudt Nhip khiu Thu Dlre. Tong tri gia giao dich thue hién trong
nam 2023 14 279.493.942.721 déng (T1ai tram bay muoi chin ty, bon tram chin muoi ba
tri¢u. chin traim bon muoi hai ngan, bay tram hai muoi mét dng.)
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3. Viée thyc hign cdc quy dink vé qudn tri céng ty: Cong ty @4 thue hién diy da cdc
quy dinh cta phdp luit vé quan trj Cong ty.

NGUOI PAI DIEN THEO PHAP LUATE -
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DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS
- BOS : Board of Supervisors
- BOD : Board of Directors
~ Company Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company
(TIMEXCO)
- GMS : General Meeting of Shareholders
- BOM : Board of Management
- PAT : Profit after tax
-PBT : Profit before tax
- FPF : Fire prevention and fighting
— Corporation : Petrovietnam Oil Corporation (PVOIL)
- VDL : Charter Capital
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PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION

I. OVERVIEW

e Trade name: Céng ty C6 phan Thuong mai Xuit Nhip khau Thu Pire

¢ International trade name: Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock
Company

e Abbreviated name: TIMEXCO

e LEnterprise registration certificate No.: 0301444626

e Charter capital: 124,000,000,000 VND

e Head office address: 231 Vo Van Ngan Street. Linh Chieu Ward, Thu Duc City,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

e Phone: (84-8) 028 38966819

o Fax: (84-8) 028 38963210

e Website: www.timexcothuduc.com.vn

e Stock code: TMC
1. Formation and development process
Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company was established
through the merger of two state-owned enterprises: Thu Duc District’s General
Materials Company and Thu Duc General Trading Company, under the name Thu Duc
Trading and Import Export Company. In 2000, the company was equitized and renamed
Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company which has been retained to
this day. Since its equitization, the company has continuously expanded its business
network and diversified into new sectors. Currently, the company operates a network of
24 retail petrol stations across Thu Duc City, Nha Be District in Ho Chi Minh City, as
well as in the provinces of Binh Duong, Dong Nai, Binh Phuoc, Binh Thuan, and Tien
Giang.
Since December 2014, Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company
has officially become a subsidiary of Vietnam Oil Corporation (PVOIL), which
currently holds 51.01% of the company's charter capital.

2. Key milestones

On March 27, 2000: Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company
was established under Decision No. 09/2000/QD-TTg issued by the Prime Minister.
The initial charter capital was 14 billion VND, with 40% owned by the State,

e [n 2002: Increased charter capital to 18 billion VND.

e In 2004: Successfully auctioned 40% of the State's capital.

5]
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e [n 2006: Increased charter capital to 27 billion VND.

e On December 2006: TIMEXCO shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City
Securities Trading Center (now the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange).

e In 2007: Increased charter capital to 40 billion VND.

e On May 2009: Transferred share listing to the Hanoi Securities Trading Center
(now the Hanoi Stock Exchange).

e In 2010: Increased charter capital to 80 billion VND.

e [In 2012: Increased charter capital to 124 billion VND.

3. Achievements of the Company over the years

e In 2008: The company was awarded the Third-Class Labor Medal by the
President of Vietnam and received a Certificate of Merit from the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City.

e In 2009: The company was awarded the Emulation Flag by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City.

 [n 2010: The Company received the Prestigious Securities Brand Cup and was
awarded the Emulation Flag by the Government.

e In 2011: The company was awarded a Certificate of Merit by the Prime Minister
and an Emulation Flag by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City.

e In 2012: The company was awarded a Certificate of Merit and an Emulation
Flag by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City.

e In 2007-2015 (9 consecutive years): The company was consistently ranked
among the Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam.

e [n 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013: The Company won the “Vietnam Gold Star Award.”

e In 2014: The company was awarded the Second-Class Labor Medal by the
President of Vietham and received a Certificate of Merit from the Ministry of
Industry and Trade for outstanding business performance in 2014,

e [n 2015: The company was awarded the Emulation Flag by Vietnam Oil and Gas
Group and received a Certificate of Merit from the People's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City for its contributions to the "Fund for the Poor" during the 2001-2015

period.

e [n 2016: The company was awarded the Emulation Flag by the Ministry of
Industry and Trade.

\:1?"4 :‘t‘\‘s-o//
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e The company consistently received the title of "Outstanding Labor Collective"
from 2001 to 2020.

1. BUSINESS SECTORS AND LOCATIONS

1. Business secfors
» Distributor of petroleum, lubricants, grease, etc.
= Motorcycle trading and repair services
» Construction steel trading
» Wedding, conference and restaurant services
= Warehouse business

= Other business activities

2. Business locations
The company’s business locations are primarily concentrated in Thu Duc City, Ho
Chi Minh City. Additionally, it has business locations in Nha Be District (Ho Chi Minh
City) and the provinces of Binh Duong, Dong Nai, Binh Phuoc, Binh Thuan, and Tien

Giang.

IIl. INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF
MANAGEMENT

1. Management model

The company's governance model includes: the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Board of Management, the Board of Supervisors and the Director.

- The General Meeting of Shareholders consists of all shareholders with voting
rights and is the highest decision-making body of the company. The General Meeting of
Shareholders elects, dismisses, and removes members of the Board of Management and
‘the Board of Supervisors.

A
Z
-
C

- Subcommittees under the Board of Management: Development Policy
Subcommittee & Remuneration Subcommittee.

- The head of the Executive Board is the Director, the legal representative, and is
responsible for managing all company activities. The Director manages and operates the
company by delegating authority to Deputy Directors and Department Heads to handle
specific tasks.
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2. Organizational Structure of Management
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11I. DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

1. General objectives

The company focuses all its resources on developing its core business in
petroleum, while also expanding into other product and service sectors outside of
petroleum, following the principle of ensuring efficiency and capital preservation,
safeguarding the interests of shareholders and investors, contributing to environmental
protection, and promoting community health.

2.  Medium- and long-term development strategy

- Invest in developing the retail network to increase market share in the petroleum

business.

- Enhance competitive capacity. apply flexible and reasonable pricing policies.
seize business opportunities, improve service quality. and meet the diverse needs of
customers, focus on customer satisfaction while strengthening marketing and brand

promotion.

- Diversify and develop new products, invest in exploring convenient services at
retail petrol stations and other business locations, promote cashless payment methods
and select reliable partners for business cooperation.

- Strengthen management, supervision, and inspection efforts; improve sales
management; reduce fuel losses; minimize business risks; preserve and enhance the
efficiency of capital and asset utilization; and consistently comply with government

policies and regulations in business operations.

- Regularly and consistently organize training and professional development
courses for employees; improve the salary and bonus system reasonably; and promptly
motivate and reward individuals and teams with outstanding performance in business

activities to serve as a catalyst for business growth.

IV. RISKS

Risk of oil price: Global crude oil and petroleum prices fluctuate constantly,
unpredictably, and are influenced by various factors such as political conditions,
economic situations in countries like the United States, China, and Europe; changes in
global supply and demand; as well as financial and market psychology factors. To
mitigate this risk, the Company’s Leadership focuses on market analysis, forecasting,
and closely monitoring market developments while implementing flexible management
policies.

Risk of Government's petroleum business management: The company’s

operations are closely tied to changes and adjustments in government policies. In recent
years, the government's management of petroleum business operations has become

10
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more transparent and market-oriented. However, these regulatory changes still pose

potential risks for the company.

Risks of fire, explosion, and environmental pollution: The petroleum business is
inherently high-risk, with potential risks related to fire, explosions, and environmental
pollution. Any incident could cause severe consequences for petrol stations and
significantly affect the company’s operations. To mitigate and control these specific
risks, the company has invested in and equipped its facilities with fire safety systems in
compliance with regulations and has secured comprehensive insurance coverage.

including asset and fire risk insurance.

SECTION 2: OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

I. BUSINESS OPERATIONS IN 2024

YEAR 2024
ITEMS UNIT ACTUA 0 /ACTUA
L PLAN ACTUAL | %/PLAN
2023 L 2023
| 1. Production volume '
- Petroleum business volume m’ 126,034 127,100 128.443 101% 102%
- Lubricant volume liter 84,321 75,000 80,809 108% ! 96%
2, Revenue B itk 2,539 2373 | 2,489 105% 98%
dong

- Petroleum business revenue " 2.428 2,256 2,398 106% 99%
- Other business & service ,, i 117 91 78% 879,
revenue
3. Profit before tax " 15.30 10 12.75 1 26% 83%
4. Payments to State Budget it 18.00 25.19

Regarding production volume:

- The petroleum consumption volume in 2024 was 128.443 m?, reaching 101% of
the planned target.

Regarding other product catecories:

- The business operations at the motorcycle business stores in 2024 have faced many
challenges due to the impact of the national economy: The economic conditions and the
instability of people's income have led to a significant decrease in motorcycle sales. The
motorcycle market is currently in a state of saturation.

Regarding Revenue:

- Total revenue in 2024 is 2.489 billion VND, reaching 105% of the annual target.
Particularly, petroleum revenue is 2,398 billion VND, reaching 106% of the annual
target; revenue from other sectors is 91 billion VND, reaching 78% of the annual target.
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Regarding the Profit before tax:

- The total Profit Before Tax in 2024 was 12.75 billion VND, reaching 126% of the

annual target

I. ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
1. List of Executive Board members

¢ Mr. Lai The Nghia: Director
- Year of birth: 1978
- Professional qualifications: Economic Engineer
- Number of shares held: 2,605,730 shares (21%)
In which: + Personal ownership: 0 shares
+ PVOIL representation ownership: 2,605,730 shares

¢ Ms. Nghiem Thi Thanh Mai:  Deputy Director
- Year of birth: 1982
- Professional qualifications: Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0%)

¢ Mr. Neguyen Anh Tuan: Deputy Director
- Year of birth: 1981
- Professional qualifications: Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0%)

¢ Mr. Bui Minh Hiep Deputy Director
- Year of birth: 1982
- Professional qualifications: Master’s Degree in Business Administration
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0%)
¢ Ms. Vu Hien Linh: Deputy Head of Accounting Department

- Year of birth: 1983
- Professional qualifications: Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0%)

2. Changes in the Board of Management and Executive Board of the Company

- Mr. Do Hoang Phuc has resigned from the position of Chairman of the
Board of Management and has ceased participation in the Board of Management
to retire from July 1, 2024,

- Mr. Nguyen Duc Thang holds the position of full-time Chairman of the
Board of Management of the Company from July 22. 2024.
3. Employee policies
3.1. Workforce structure (as of December 31, 2024)

¢ Total number of employees in the company: 264 people, including:

lz| &S cz256 |2
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Executives: 07 people
Professional, service, and security personnel: 57 people
Direct sales statt: 200 people

Number of employees with a Bachelor's and College degree: 88 people; Master's
degree: 3 people: Number of employees with Master's degrees: 03 people

¢ Party Organization and Unions:

Party committee: 44 party members
Grassroots trade union; 294 union members

Grassroots youth union: 45 youth union members

3.2. Employee policies

In 2024, despite the challenging business situation, the Company's Board of
Directors implemented proactive measures to direct business operations and ensure
stable income for employees throughout the year. At the same time, the Company
continued to follow the policies for employees according to the Collective Labor

Agreement, specifically as follows:

- During the year, the Company organized training courses for employees.

including fire prevention & rescue, fuel business operations and environmental
protection, occupational health and safety training, quality management, and
transport driving courses, etc. The total estimated training cost was 359 million

VND.

The Company complies with the labor laws and policies, ensuring that employees'

material and spiritual well-being is well cared for according to the Collective

Labor Agreement. The Company provides employees with health insurance. social

insurance, and unemployment insurance as required by law. Additionally, the
Company purchases accident insurance for employees 24/7 and promptly provides
emergency assistance for employees facing unexpected difficulties. Employees

working directly in fuel sales at petrol stations and in fuel transportation (drivers,

assistant drivers of tanker trucks) are provided with hazardous work allowances.
Moreover, each employee receives a gift on their birthday, and employees who
marry in accordance with the Marriage and Family Law are given gifts in
compliance with the provisions of the Collective Labor Agreement.

Activities of the Grassroots Trade Union:

Regularly take care of employees' spiritual life, organize a Spring meeting for the

Year of the Dragon, and giving New Year's lucky money to employees with a total
amount of 144,500,000 VND. The Union also organized the "SPRING UNITY — TET
REUNION" event for employees directly working in sales and ensuring safety during the
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Tet holidays at 29 business locations of the Company, with gift packages valued at
1.200,000 VND each (containing Chung cakes, pickled onions. cakes, watermelon seeds.
sausages, etc.). creating a joyful atmosphere for employees to celebrate the Spring and
enthusiastically continue their work.

- 65 employee representatives attended the 2024 Workers' Conference, summarize
the implementation of the 2022-2023 Collective Labor Agreement and sign the new
2023-2025 Collective Labor Agreement.

- Send 11 Union members to attend the study session on the Resolution of the 13™
Congress of the Vietnam General Confederation of Labor, and the Resolution of the 7%
Congress of the Vietnam Oil and Gas Union, organized by the Vietnam Oil and Gas
Union on March 13, 2024; and sent union members to participate in online study sessions
on Resolution 10 of the 13" Central Committee on October 20, 2024, and Resolution 18
of the 13" Central Committee on December 1, 2024.

- Send 03 Union members to attend the training on Women's Work organized by
the Vietnam Oi1l and Gas Trade Union on March 28, 2024; and sent 02 Union members
to attend the training on Legal and Policy Work organized by the Vietnam Oil and Gas
Trade Union on June 12, 2024.

- Send employees from petrol stations and fuel transport drivers to participate in
environmental protection training, fire prevention and fighting & rescue training,
hazardous goods transportation training, and issued certificates of completion for the
courses.

- The Company’s Trade Union Committee visited union members facing
difficulties and proposed support from the Vietnam Oil and Gas Trade Union and
PVOIL's “*Solidarity Fund” and “PVOIL — United Heart” Fund: 89,000,000 VND.

- Coordinate with the local government to organize a vacation trip for 153
employees in 2 batches to Vinh Hy.

- The Executive Committee, in collaboration with the local government, distributed
additional salaries during holidays and festivals, thereby effectively performing the
advisory and supervisory role in ensuring the implementation of policies and benefits for

employees.
- A representative of the Trade Union Executive Committee participated in the mid-
term review conference on business operations for the first 9 months of 2024 in Hue - Da

Nang.
e Activities of the Youth Union:

- Participate in the program "PVOIL Goes Home for Tet 2024.," making Chung
cakes with the PVOIL Youth Union and the University of Danang - University of
Technology and Education.
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- Participate in the PVOIL4U application experience; join the dialogue between the
leadership of Petrovietnam Oil Corporation and the vouth union members on the
occasion of Youth Month, as well as other company activities and movements.

- Participate in a dialogue between the leadership of the Corporation and the vouth
union members on the occasion of the Youth Month at the Corporation.

- Continue to foster and introduce outstanding union members to the Party
Committee to create a source for developing new party members.

- Participate in the Green Saturday campaign in collaboration with the company’s
trade union.

- Participate in the “Traffic Safety Knowledge and Safe Driving Skills” competition
at 719-721 Kha Van Can, Linh Tdy Ward, Thu Duc City.

- Support the children in participating in the “PVOIL Summer Day for Children”
program at Vuon Xoai Ecotourism Area in Dong Nai.

- Participate in supporting the blood donation program with the theme "The Passion
of the Oil and Gas People" at the Corporation.

- Assist in guiding the installation of PVOIL 4U and participate in the Roadshow
parade at 14 gas stations.

- Participate in activities organized by the higher-level Youth Union.

II. INVESTMENT SITUATION AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

- Basic construction investment:

Timexco has undertaken the repair of gas stations and business points to meet the
needs of production and business activities, including:

+ Raise the foundation at Gas Station 2; renovating Gas Station 29; repair the
Rose Palace wedding restaurant at 746 Kha Van Can Street, and install signage for
customers in Ho Chi Minh City, Dong Nali, etc.:

+ Upgrade and replace electronic display systems at affiliated gas stations to
comply with Decree No. 123/2020/ND-CP.

+ Complete the renovation and repair of gas stations according to Project 1114.
Implement repair documentation for the office at 740A Vo Nguyen Giap. Hiep
Phu Ward.

+ Address outstanding issues in investment work and legal documents for land
lots.

+ Continue to complete the procedures for extending the land usage term at Gas
Station No. 5 and the company office at 231 Vo Van Ngan, Linh Chieu Ward, Thu Duc
City.

- System development: The number of newly developed gas stations during the
period: 3 gas stations (Gas Station No. 26, Gas Station No. 27, Gas Station No. 29),
reaching 150% of the 2024 plan.
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ITI. FINANCIAL SITUATION

1.  Financial situation

ITEMS YEAR 2023

YEAR 2024

Total asset value

343.070.627.074

337.194.388.638

Net revenue 2.539.694.355.817 2.489.000.782.722
Profit from business
e 9.966.508.758 12.166.213.405

Profit before tax

15.338.435.024

12.753.847.514

Profit after tax

11.888.052.149

10.024.304.981

Dividend payout ratio

6%

3.5%

2. Key financial indicators

Year Year

Items Unit 2023 2023 Note
1. Liguidity indicators
~+ Current ratio
Current assets
Short-term liabilities times | 1.30 1.34
T i W R e I
Current assets — Inventory
Short-term liabilities times | (.80 0.98
2 quliraf structure indicators
II-:.:":;."fl.)iéf;}t-to-total—assets ratio % 4338 | 42.49
+ Debt-to-equity ratio % | 7662 | 73.89
3. Operational efficiency indicators
+ Inventgry turnover ratio: |
~ Costof goods sold
Average inventory times | 36.60 | 50.52

/./Oﬂ #* M'S‘Dq}\
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| 4. Profitability indicators

+Ratmofnetpmmaﬂer tanget revem]e % 047 04 5| —— |
+ Ratio of net profit after tax /Equity % | 612 | 517 |
+ Ratio of net proﬁt after tax /Total assets o %% ME‘).47 i97 R

i fmmopcm[mgac[wme«, b T
l Net revenue % 0.39 0.49

IV. SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

MAJOR
SHARE AS OF JUNE 26, 2024
NO | SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE |HOLDE- NUMBER RATIO/CHAR
RS | OF SHARES Li
CAPITAL (%)
I | Domestic shareholders: 12,179,754 98.21
1l | Institutional shareholders: 9.455,750 7025
PetroVietnam Oil Corporation — JSC X .
{.d (PVOIL) 6,325,730 51.01
Hochiminh City Petroleum Company X
12| { imited (SAIGON PETRO) dp Sl e
Saigon Co.Op Investment X
1.3 | Development Joint Stock Company 1,017,000 8.2
(SCID)
1.4 | Other institutions 264,860 2.14
2 | Individual shareholders: 2,724,840 21.96
II | Foreign shareholders 222,410 1.79
1 | Institutional shareholders 112,350 0.91
2 | Individual shareholders 110,060 0.89
Total 12,400,000 i 100

Total number of outstanding shares: 12,400,000 shares

Changes in owner's investment capital: Thu Duc Trading And Import Export Joint

Stock Company did not change its share capital in 2024.

V. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT REPORT

VA

Environmental protection

- Mobilize and propagate to employees to raise awareness of their responsibility
for environmental protection, with a conscious effort to use resources such as electricity
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and water efficiently and economically; minimize waste at the workplace: reduce
activities that generate waste and environmental pollution; control and handle waste in
accordance with regulations, contributing to environmental improvement and human
health.

- Plant green trees at business locations and outside the company’s office building

to reduce emissions into the environment.

2. Control work environment

- The company always complies with regulations on safety and fire prevention,
regularly organizing inspections to ensure fire prevention and fighting (FPF) safety at
business locations. It consistently focuses on and improves the working environment to
be green, clean, beautiful, safe, and well-ventilated for employees. In 2024, the

company recorded no workplace accidents.
3. Employee care

- Organize periodic health check-ups for employees and conduct training courses to
enhance professional knowledge and skills.

- The company has organized occupational safety and hygiene training sessions for
employees, providing protective equipment such as uniforms, shoes, gloves, fabric hats,

raincoats, etc.
- The Board of Directors, in collaboration with the Company’s Trade Union,

ensures the provision of salaries and bonuses for employees on public holidays and Tet
holidays.

- Organize activities to care for, visit, and give gifts to retired employees and those
facing difficulties during the Lunar New Year; present gifts to female employees on
International Women’s Day (March 8) and Vietnamese Women's Union Day (October
20); give birthday gifts to employees and wedding gifts to those getting married.

4. For community and society

- The company has invested in and installed technology pipelines at petrol stations
in compliance with safety standards. regularly conducting inspections, maintenance, and
the proper treatment of hazardous waste as required by relevant authorities.

- Organize additional working Saturdays during the year to support various funds,
including the "Petroleum Mutual Assistance Fund," the "PVOIL One Heart Fund," the
"For the Young Generation Fund" of the Youth Union, and the "Comradeship Fund" of

the Veterans Association.

- Participate in charitable social activities initiated by local authorities; support the
"Fund for the Poor" in areas where the company operates; visit and assist employees in
difficult circumstances; gave gifts to policy beneficiary families supported by the
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company in Thu Duc City: and take part in visiting, honoring, and giving gifis to
families of revolution contributors and Vietnamese heroic mothers during the Lunar
New Year and War Invalids and Martyrs' Day.
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PART 3: REPORT AND EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I. EVALUATION OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
1. Situation overview

a. Global situation:

OPEC+ members have maintained or reduced production to keep oil prices high.
however, pressure from weak economies may lead to reduced demand. The U.S. Energy
Information Administration (EIA) forecasts a global supply deficit of approximately
800,000 barrels per day in the first quarter of 2024. Brent crude oil prices are expected
to range between 80 and 100 USD per barrel.

In the second half’ of 2024, OPEC+ may ease production limits. potentially
causing a slight decrease in oil prices. However, geopolitical factors and the ongoing
global economic slowdown will continue to create unpredictable impacts.

Oil demand growth is slowing, primarily driven by China and developed
countries. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects global economic growth to
decline to 2.9%, weakening the motivation for oil consumption.

b. Domestic situation:
Domestic fuel prices are heavily influenced by fluctuations in global oil prices.
The government and major fuel distributors continue to implement market stabilization
measures to ensure supply and maintain quality control.

Domestic fuel prices closely follow international market trends. Since early
December, RON95 gasoline prices have slightly decreased, remaining at approximately
20,600 VND per liter. However, international prices still carry potential risks due to
OPEC+ production adjustments and geopolitical volatility, despite downward pressure
from weak global demand.

The year 2024 is expected to remain challenging for the economy. Additionally,
the city’s focus on constructing key infrastructure projects has significantly affected the
scale of the company’s fuel retail network.

The impacts of the global economy have also significantly affected the Company's
non-fuel business segments, such as motorcycle sales and property leasing, which faced
considerable difficulties in 2024.

Business Performance in 2024

» Fuel consumption: 128,443 m?, reaching 101% of the annual plan.

» Revenue from fuel business activities in 2024 reached 2,398.31 billion VND,

achieving 112% of the annual target.

\4

target.

Pre-tax profit in 2024 was 12.75 billion VND, achieving 126% of the annual
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ILFINANCIAL SITUATION

1. Asset situation

Items Unit Year 2023 Year 2024
Asset structure
e e assetb,TOta[assetb % 7 RS
= Nm_cunent assetsﬁomlassem % 5016 ....... IS
Capital structure
e Capltal SN, % 4333 BTy
[Siggirtli-ttizrsm liabilities/Total o 28 52 90.22
E;;%;E;ﬂ liabilities/Total o, 1148 9.78
oo — % 5662 M
Liquidity capacity
- Current ratio times 1.30 134
- Quick rati;m times 0.79 0.98

2. Liabilities status
- Total short-term liabilities: 129,269,545,349 VND

III. BUSINESS PLAN 2025

In 2025, the petroleum business is expected to face many unpredictable
developments. The company has developed its 2025 plan based on the performance of
2024, with a cautious approach and in accordance with the guidance of PetroVietnam
Oil Corporation regarding commission discounts and fuel prices.

1. Key targets:
- Petroleum business volume : 127,000 m’

- Revenue :1,909.1 billion dong.

- Profit before tax : 10 billion dong.

2.  Solutions for implementing the 2025 business plan

1. Organize fuel business operations in compliance with state regulations, the policies
of the parent corporation, and the specific conditions of the unit; strive to increase sales
across all three distribution channels to expand market share while ensuring business

efficiency.

WN\FSE /sy
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2. Focus on increasing retail sales through existing petrol stations and developing new

ones in 2025. Promote the implementation of programs such as PVOIL Easy, PVOIL
B2B. PVOIL 4U, and other I'T-based sales applications, while diversifying cashless
payment methods (e.g., QR code, mobile money, etc.).

3. Continue to seek opportunities for developing petrol stations through various
methods (long-term leasing, self-investment, joint investment, or introducing
investment oppaortunities for the parent corporation to successfully invest/lease and then
transfer to member unit for operation) based on a balanced capital structure in
compliance with regulations, and with accountability for investment efficiency.
Regularly conduct inspections and supervision of petrol station investment activities to
ensure effective investments and prevent losses or capital depletion;

4. Accelerate the investment and development of non-oil services at petrol stations and
long-haul truck service stops.

5. Strictly implement Project 1114 on "Improving customer service quality at petrol
stations."

6. Strictly comply with all regulations on safety, fire safety and environmental
protection, ensuring the safety of personnel and assets in production and business
activities.

7. Take decisive action to address existing issues to complete the issuance of land use

rights certificates and property ownership rights associated with the land in accordance
with legal regulations;

8. Focus on the core business of fuel trading: maintain non-fuel business activities to
create opportunities for business expansion while ensuring stable and efficient
operations.

9. Strengthen the use of products/services from PVOIL Trans and Thai Binh PSC.
Continue to promote the business of PVOIL Lube lubricants:

10. Regarding management tasks:

- Strengthen inspection and supervision of the unit's operations to ensure efficiency.
preserve, and grow capital. Closely monitor receivables to prevent new bad debts,
resolve and recover outstanding and doubtful debts, maintain a healthy financial
situation, and fully implement risk management measures as prescribed;

- Strengthen cost control, reduce expenses, and ensure that expenditures are directly
linked to business efficiency.

- Strengthen corporate governance, develop the brand, and promote the
implementation of scientific research projects and the application of information
technology in management and operations to enhance business efficiency.

3
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- Promote the implementation of digital transformation to enhance management
efficiency, with a particular focus on modernizing fuel dispensers to establish a solid
foundation for applying Industry 4.0 technology in retail operations and diversifying
cashless payment methods:

- Review/develop and implement a performance evaluation system (KPIs) within the
Unit to effectively utilize existing resources and meet the Unit's development
requirements.

IV. EVALUATION REPORT ON THE COMPANY'S ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Comply with environmental protection laws

- The company regularly conducts monitoring of emissions, wastewater, microclimate
indicators, and the working environment at its petroleum stations. These
measurements and tests are performed twice a year by authorized agencies. and the
results consistently meet legal standards.

- The company has installed waste bins with clear labels distinguishing between
household waste and hazardous solid waste at its business locations and office. These
bins are collected periodically by authorized units.

- The management of solid waste and hazardous waste strictly follows legal
regulations. The company has signed contracts with licensed service providers to
collect and process the waste in accordance with current laws.

2. Community and social responsibilities

- Participate in social and charitable activities initiated by local authorities. The
company also organizes extra work efforts to support people affected by natural
disasters, storms, floods, and other social welfare activities.

- Organize training courses and professional workshops to enhance the knowledge and
skills of employees, with a focus on raising awareness about the protection of people
and assets, as well as improving emergency response skills related to occupational
safety, environmental protection and fire safety.

- Prioritize improving the working environment for employees, ensuring health, safety,

and hygiene standards.

-2
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SECTION 4: EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE

COMPANY'S OPERATIONS

I. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS

The petroleum business in 2024 continued to face many difficulties. In the face of

these challenges, the Company has consistently strived to improve business efficiency
despite low discounts and rising operating costs. The specific business results are as
follows:

The total petroleum sales volume in 2024 reached 128.443.12 m°. reaching 101%
of the annual target.

Revenue in 2024 was 2,489 billion VND, reaching 105% of the annual target.
Profit before tax in 2024 was 12.75 billion VND, reaching 126% of the annual
target.

System development plan: During the year, the company leased and put into
operation 3 new petroleum stations, reaching 150% of the petrol station
development plan.

Capital preservation and development: The company preserved and developed its
capital, ensuring no new bad debts or uncollectible receivables occurred.

Ensure absolute safety in occupational safety and fire prevention across the
company’s petrol station network:

Comply with legal regulations. fulfill all obligations to the state, and uphold social
responsibilities. Manage the company with transparency and integrity, prioritizing
the company’s interests while harmonizing the benefits of shareholders.
customers, and employees.

II. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
PERFORMANCE OF EXECUTIVE BOARD

- In the challenging business environment of 2024, the company's Executive board

implemented decisive and timely solutions to mitigate losses and business risks.

- The Executive Management has promptly and fully implemented the resolutions

and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Management

with a high sense of responsibility; maintained regular monthly reports to the Board of

Management on the company's business performance, attended all Board meetings, and
actively contributed opinions regarding the execution of the company's busines plans,
objectives and tasks.

- The executive board consistently monitors the company’s actual situation,

managing business operations flexibly and promptly in alignment with the policies and
directions of the Board of Directors, while adapting to the developments in the
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petroleum business market, ensuring stable operations, job security for employees, and
capital preservation for shareholders.

I11. BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS

- Direct resources toward developing the core fuel business while exploring
opportunities in non-fuel sectors, invest in infrastructure, apply new technologies, and
adopt innovative business models. partnerships, and investments to increase fuel sales
across distribution channels, expand market share, and promote cashless payment
methods.

- Strengthen inspections and supervision, ensuring the effective implementation of
measures to guarantee absolute safety in business operations, ensure product quality,
offer competitive prices, and comply with state regulations on fuel pricing to improve
business efficiency and preserve capital.

- Direct the training and development of human resources to meet the development
needs of the Company, increasing income for employees, ensuring benefits for
shareholders and partners; continuing to participate in social security activities,

protecting the environment and communicty health.
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PART §5: COMPANY GOVERNANCE

I. BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Structure of the Board of Management
The Board of Management consists of 05 members.

e Ms. Do Hoang Phuc: Chairman of Board of Management until June 30, 2024
- Year of birth: 1963
- Professional qualification: Bachelor of General University of Ho Chi Minh City.
- Current positions in other organizations: None
- Number of shares held: 3,720,000 shares (30% ownership)

In which: + Individual ownership: 0 shares

+ PVOIL’s representation ownership: 3,720,000 shares

eMr. Nguyen Duc Thang: Chairman of Board of Management from July 22,
2024
- Year of birth: 1979
- Professional qualification: Master’s degree in Economic Law.
- Current positions in other organizations: None
- Number of shares held: 3,720,000 shares (ty 1¢ 30%)
In which: + Individual ownership: 0 shares

+ PVOIL’s representation ownership: 3,720,000 shares

e Mr. Lai The Nghia: Chairman of Board of Management, Director of the
Company

- Year of birth: 1978

- Professional qualification: Economic engineer

- Current positions in other organizations: None

- Number of shares held: 2,605,730 shares (21% ownership)
In which: + Individual ownership: 0 shares

+ PVOIL’s representation ownership: 2,605,730 shares

e Mr. Nguyen Quoc Cuong: Member of Board of Management (Non-executive
member)

- Year of birth: 1980

- Professional qualification: Master of Business Administration

- Current positions in other organizations: Saigon Petro Vietnam Oil Joint Stock
Company

- Number of shares held: 0 shares

26
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e Mr. Tran Cong Lanh: Member of Board of Management (Non-executive
member)
- Year of birth: 1980
- Professional qualification: Master of Laws
- Current positions in other organizations: Head of the Administration and
Organization Department. Head of the Legal Department at HoChiMinh City
Petroleum Company Limited
- Number of shares held: 1.847.160 shares
In which: + Individual ownership: 0 shares
+ Representation ownership of HOCHIMINH CITY PETROLEUM
COMPANY LIMITED (SAIGON PETRO): 1,847,160 shares (14.9%
ownership).
e Mr. Pham Xuan Phong: Member of Board of Management (Independent
member)
- Year of birth: 1987
- Professional qualification: Master of Finance
- Current positions in other organizations: none
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0% ownership)
2. Subcommiittees of the Board of Management
2.1. Development policy subcommittee: consists of 5 members

e Head: Mr. Lai The Nghia — Member of Board of Management

e Members:

- Mr. Pham Van Tan — Sales manager

- Ms. Vu Hien Linh — Deputy Head of Accounting Department
- Mr. Ngo Minh Thang — Deputy Sales Manager

- Mr. Dinh Trung Dung — Deputy Head of Investment Department

2.2. Personnel and Remuneration Subcommittee: consists of 3 members

e Head: Mr. Lai The Nghia — Member of Board of Management

e Members::

- Mr. Dang The Son — Head of the Administration and Organization
Department

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Mai — Deputy Head of the Administration and

Organization Department

3. Activities of the Board of Management
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- The BOM regularly supervises the activities of the Director and other managers in
carrying out their duties according to the Company's Charter, and the Regulations on
the organization and operations of the BOM. The BOM does not interfere in the
operational management of the Director but facilitates and supports the Director in
effectively implementing the resolutions and decisions of the GSM and the BOM.

- Regularly monitor. urge and direct the implementation of production and business
plan targets and oversees the development of retail fuel stations.

- Direct and supervise the management of receivables and payables. handle/collect
overdue debts in business. prevent the creation of bad debts, and leads cost-saving
planning at the company.

- Supervise and direct the implementation of investment projects in basic
construction: repairing retail fuel stations and business locations: address outstanding
issues in investment activities, legal documentation for land areas; and develop the
network of retail fuel stations.

- Direct the development and approval of staffing plans, labor usage, and salary
plans for 2024, and finalize the salary fund for 2023.

- Continue to direct the review, revision, and supplementation of internal
management documents to align with newly effective government regulations and the
company's actual situation; improvescustomer service quality at retail petrol stations;
enhance management practices in retail operations at gas stations; strengthen fire safety,
occupational safety and hygiene measures at fuel stations.

- The Board of Management regularly collaborates closely and effectively with the
Director and the Board of Supervisors in implementing the Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Management (BOM); monitors
compliance with laws and internal regulations in managing and operating the company's
activities. All Resolutions/Decisions issued by the BOM are promptly sent to the
Director and communicated to the Board of Supervisors. The implementation of the
BOM's resolutions/decisions is continuously monitored, periodically reviewed and
evaluated

4. Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Management

In 2024, the BOM of the Company held meetings or collected written opinions
from the BOM on the following main topics:

NO Resolution/decision Date \ R et

number

01/NQ-TMC-HDQT

22/01/2024

The Board of Management' resolution on the
approval of the contract for transactions
between Thu Duc Trading and Import Export
Joint Stock Company and Related Parties..

| 02/QD-TMC- HDQT

23/01/2024

The Board of Management' resolution on the
approval of the report on the business results
for 2023, the business plan for 2024, and the
plan to organize the 2024 Annual General

28
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! Meeting of Shareholders. |'

| The Board of Management' decision on the

: ; : 19/02/2024 establishment of the organizing committee for
e Sl S e the 2024 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.

| 04/NQ-TMC-HDQT

20/02/2024

Board of Management' Resolution on the
approval of the contents and agenda for the
2024  Annual Meeting  of
Shareholders.

General

07/NQ-TMC-HDQT

29/3/2024

Resolution on the election of the Head of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company.

08/QD-TMC-HDQT

29/3/2024

Board of Management' Decision on the salary
payment for the Head of the
Supervisors.

Board of |

09/QD-TMC-HDQT

29/3/2024

Board of Management' Decision on the change
of personnel holding the position of the Head of
the Board of Supervisors.

10/QD-TMC-HDQT

16/4/2024

Board of Management' decision on the
completion of the customer debt review

council.

11/NQ-TMC-HDQT

31/5/2024

Board of Management' resolution on the
approval of the plan to lease the land use rights
and assets attached to land in Buu Long Ward,
Bien Hoa, Dong Nai Province for establishing a
petrol business location.

10

12/NQ-TMC-HDQT

05/6/2024

Board of Management' resolution on the
approval to organize an Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2024.

11

13/QD-TMC-HDQT

10/6/2024

Board of Management' Decision on the
appointment of staff for overseas business
trips.

12

15/QD-TMC-HDQT

21/6/2024

Board of Management' Decision on the
establishment of the Organizing Committee
for the Extraordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders.

13

16/NQ-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

Board of Management' Resolution on the
approval of the estimated business results for
the first six months of 2024; Approval to
choose An Viet Audit Co., Ltd. to audit the

29
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Company's 2024  financial
Approval of the contents and agenda for the
Extraordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders to be held on July 22, 2024,

14

17/NQ-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

Board of Management' Resolution on the
assignment of Mr. Lai The Nghia to oversee
the activities of the Board of Management
(from July 1, 2024 to July 22, 2024).

18/QD-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

'Board of Management' Decision on the

finalization of the 2023 salary fund.

16

19/QD-TMC-HDQT

28/6/2024

| Salary Regulation.

Board of Management' Decision on the

addition of job titles and adjustment of |
the Company's

allowance coefficients 1in

20/NQ-TMC-HDQT

09/07/2024

Resolution on the reappointment of staff.

18

21/QD-TMC-HDQT

12/07/2024

Resolution on the approval of the plan to lease
the 4™ floor of TMC Tower at 231 Vo Van
Ngan, Linh Chieu Ward, Thu Duc City.

19

25/NQ-TMC-HDQT

22/07/2024

Resolution on the election of the Chairman of
the Board of Management.

20

26/QD-TMC-HDQT

01/08/2024

Decision on the reappointment of staff.

2]

29/QD-TMC-HDQT

12/08/2024

Decision on the assignment of tasks to the
Board of Management Members of the

Company.

30/QD-TMC-HDQT

12/08/2024

Decision on the establishment of the Debt Sale
Review Council.

23

33/NQ-TMC-HDQT

09/09/2024

Resolution on the appointment of the person in |
charge of corporate governance.

24

34/QD-TMC-HDQT

09/09/2024

Decision on the appointment of the person in
charge of corporate governance.

25

37/QD-TMC-HDQT

25/10/2024

Decision on the approval of the 2024 salary
fund plan for the Company.

26

38/QD-TMC-HDQT

25/10/2024

Decision on the issuance of the Company's
Information Disclosure Regulation.

27

41/NQ-TMC-HDQT

07/11/2024

Resolution on the approval of the report on the
implementation of production and business
activities for the first 9 months of 2024 and the
business plan for Quarter 2024,

44/QD-TMC-HDQT

20/11/2024

Decision on the issuance of the Regulations on
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the functions, tasks, and powers of the
Company's departments.

3.  Activities of the Subcommittees under the Board of Management.
The activities of the Subcommittees under the BOM always comply with the
regulations and rules of the BOM.
- Development Policy Subcommittee: Provide advice to the BOM on the
Company's business strategy: advises the BOM on investment and the
development of new petrol stations.

- Personnel and Remuneration Subcommittee: Review and provide feedback on the
Company's salary and bonus policies.

II. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1. Structure of the Board of Supervisors
The Board of Supervisors consists of 03 members:
e Mr. Nguyen Trong Binh: Head of the Specialized Board of Controllers

- Year of birth: 1979
- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Economics
- Number of shares held: 0 shares (0.00% ownership)
In which: + Individual ownership: 0 shares
+ Ownership representation: 0 shares

e Ms. Ngo Phuong Hanh: Controller

- Year of birth: 1974

- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Economics

- Current positions in other organizations: Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting

Department of Hochiminh City Petroleum Company Limited.

- Number of shares held: 0 shares
e Mr. Nguyen Thanh Binh: Controller
- Year of birth: 1962
- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Finance and Accounting
- Current positions in other organizations: none
- Number of shares held: 192.012 shares (1.55% shares)

[n which: + Individual ownership: 192.012 shares
+ Ownership representation: 0 shares

2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024

- Conduct a review and assessment of the implementation of resolutions and
decisions of the GMS and BOM.




T™MC ANNUAL REPORT 2024

- Inspect the supervision work of the BOM over the Executive Board: evaluate the
results of the business plan implementation and the management of the Executive
Board; verify financial reports, audit reports; supervise and assess the company's
financial situation, compliance, management and use of capital, management of
customer debts, and the company's debt repayment capacity.

- Supervise the implementation of resolutions from the GMS and the company's
Charter in accordance with legal regulations.

III. TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOM,
BOC, AND EXECUTIVE BOARD

1. Salary, bonuses, remuneration, and benefits

* The total remuneration for the non-full-time members of the BOM for 2024 is 216
million VND (Two hundred sixteen million dong).

- The full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors and the full-time Head of the
Supervisory Board shall receive salary and allowances according to the Company's

salary and bonus policy.
2. Transactions of shares by internal shareholders: None
Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders:

Transactions involving the purchase and sale of petroleum products with
subsidiaries of PetroVietnam Oil Corporation (PVOIL) for business purposes. PVOIL is
a major shareholder of Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company. The
total value of transactions in 2024 is 1,981,715,323.510 VND (One trillion, nine
hundred eighty-one billion, seven hundred fifteen million, three hundred twenty-three
thousand, five hundred ten dong).

Transactions involving the purchase of petroleum products from HOCHIMINH
CITY PETROLEUM COMPANY LIMITED for business purposes. SAIGON PETRO
is a major shareholder of Thu Duc Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company.
The total value of transactions in 2023 is 279,493,942,721 VND (Two hundred seventy-
nine billion, four hundred ninety-three million, nine hundred forty-two thousand, seven

hundred twenty-one dong).

3. Implementation of corporate governance regulations: The Company has fully
complied with legal regulations on corporate governance.
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Signed and stamped
Lai The Nghia
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Hém nay, ngdy ... 190 W8 i Cong Ty TNHE MTV DVDL va Dich Thust Trust c6
dia chi tai 225 Hai Ba Trumg, P. V6 Thi S&u, Q. 3, Tp.HCM — DT: 0767002116

On ..ﬂ.—.ﬂZ:,leZE..., at the Trust Translation and Travel Service Co., Ltd of 225 Hai Ba
Trung, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3 — Tel: 0767002116

T6i, PHAM QUOC VIET, Gidam Péc Cong Ty TNHH MTV DVDL va Dich Thuit Trust,
bé’mg van ban nay xac nhan l.“E:lIlg day la ban dich dting va chinh xdc tr gidy t& dinh kém.

I, PHAM QUOC VIET, am Director of Trust Translation and Travel Service Co., Ltd, hereby
certify that this is an accurate and correct translation from the attached document.

CONG TY TNHH MTV DVDL VA DICH THUAT TRUST
TRUST TRANSLATION AND TRAVEL SERVICE CO\, LTD
DIRECTOR / GIAM BOC
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors of Thu Duc Trading and Import-Export Joint Stock Company (the “Company™) presents
this report together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Board of Management and Board of Directors

The members of the Boards of Management and Directors of the Company who held office during the year and
to the date of this report are as follows:

My, Nguyen Duc Thang Chairman (appointed on 01 July 2024)
Mr. Do Hoang Phue Chairman (retired on 01 July 2024)
Mr. Lai The Nghia Member, Director

Mr. Tran Cong Lanh Member

Mr, Nguyen Quoc Cuong Member

Mr. Pham Xuan Phong Member

Mr. Nguyen Anh Tuan Deputy Director

Ms., Nghiem Thi Thanh Mai Deputy Director

Mr, Bui Minh Hiép Deputy Director

Management’s responsibility

Board of Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and business
results, cash flows of the Company for the year. In preparing these financial statements, Board of Directors are
required to:

e Comply with Viethamese Accounting Standards, Corporate Accounting System and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements;
Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material misstated
applications which need to be disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparation and
presentation of the financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds; and

o Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue its business.

Board of Directors are responsible for ensuring that accounting books are properly recorded to disclose the
financial position of the Company reasonably at any time and the financial statements are prepared and presented
in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the
relevant statutory requirements. Board of Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable methods to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Board of Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing and

Ha Chi Minh Ciry, O7 February 2025
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An Viet Auditing Company Limited

o
M a n v I et Level 12, 167 Building, Bui Thi Xuan Sireel, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi

Certified Public Accountants w wwxy.anvietfzpa.com T (84-24) 6278 2904
E anviel@anvietcpa.com F (B4-24) 6278 2905

No: 1172025/KT-AVI-TC2
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: The Sharcholders
The Board of Management and Board of Directors
Thu Due Trading and Import Export Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thu Due Trading and Import-Export Joint Stock
Company (the “Company™), prepared on 07 February 2025 as set out from page 4 to page 33, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the statement of income, and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations relating to financial
reporting and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.
Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements reflect fairly and reasonably, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, as well as the results of its operations and cash flows for the
year, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Corporate Accounting System and other related
legal regulations to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Emphasis of Malter

As stated in Note 10 of the financial statement explanatory notes, as of the issuance date of this report, the
Company.is-continuing to work with the relevant authorities and individuals to address the shortage of assets
= e

Nguyen D¢ Duong Do Huy Anh

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 0387-2023-055-1 No. 5105-2021-055-1

For and on behalf of

AN VIET AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanoi, 07 February 2025

3 Partnering for Success
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 20124
FORM B01-DN
Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
A - CURRENT ASSETS 100 173,003,579,142 171,003,476,242
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 47,475,568,492 34,245,413,092
. Cash 111 5 17,475,568,492 34.,245,413,092
2, Cashequivalents 112 30,000,000,000 -
II. Short-term financial investments 120 6 745,358,144 745,384,424
1. Trading securities 121 851,071,996 851,071,996
5 I rovision for diminution in value of trading 122 (105,713,852) (105,687,572)
securities
Il Short-term receivables 130 77,786,698,850 69,227,774,831
I. Short-term trade receivables 131 7 49,215,751,171 44,746,219,890
2. Short-term advances to suppliers 132 8 497 843 560 882,304,580
3. Other short-term receivables 136 9 27,295,409,829 21,326.339.293
4. Provision for short-term doubtful debts 137 (1,731,067,778) (235,851,000
5. Deficits in assets awaiting solution 139 10 2,508,762,068 2,508,762,068
IV. Inventories 140 11 46,476,874,515 605,799,354,408
1. Inventories 141 46,476,874,515 65,799,354,408
V. Othershort-term assets 150 519,079,141 985,549,487
1. Short-term prepayments 151 12 519,079,141 927,800,544
2. Value added tax deductibles 152 - 23,975,670
3 Taxes and other receivables from the State 153 18 i 33.773.273
budget
B - NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 164,190,809,496 172,067,150,832
I. Fixed assets 220 116,137,562,107 120,149.805,611
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 14 39,972,796,678 42,113,009,630
- Cost 222 150,590,496,593 149,057,646,342
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (110,617,699,915) (106,944,636,712)
2, Intangible fixed assets 227 13 76,164,765,429 78,036,795,981
- Cost 228 102,373,187,883 102,373,187,883
Accumulated amortisation 229 (26,208,422,454) (24,336,391,902)
L. Investment property 230 15 5,022.580,370 5,508,636,542
- Cost 231 12,203,241,726 12,203,241,726
- Accumulated depreciation 232 (7,180,061,356) (6,694,605,184)
IV. Long-term assets in progress 240 18,518,519 -
1. Construction in progress 242 18,518,519 -
V. Long-term financial investments 250 6 4,779,833 ,420 6,273,222 446
1. Equity investments in other entities 253 8,922.871,000 8,922,871,000
9 ?rowsron for impairment of long-term financial 254 (4,143,037.580) (2,649,648,554)
investments
V1. Other non-current assets 260 38,232,315,080 40,135,486,233
. Long-term prepayments 261 12 37,883,943,735 39,749,789.368
2. Other long-terim assets 268 16 348,371,345 385,696,865
TOTAL ASSETS 270 337,194,388,638 343,070,627,074

The notes set oyt on pages 8 to 33 are an integral part of these financial statements
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024
FORM B 01-DN
Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
C - LIABILITIES 300 143,284,393,803 148,832,364,444
L. Current liabilities 310 129,269,545,349 131,742,984.,680
[. Short-term trade payahles 311 17 34,262,913,002 $6,684.247.608
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 522,074,613 572,467,429
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the Statc budget 313 18 1,815,977,579 2,453,968,502
4. Payables to employees 314 15,363,543,683 18,051,105,321
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 1,006,338,900 -
5. Other current payables 319 19 25,152,844,206 23,940,444,310
6. Bonus and welfare funds 322 1,145,853,366 40,751,510
II. Long-term liabilitics 330 14,014,848,454 17,089,379,764
I. Long-term unearned revenue 336 20 14,014,848 454 17,018,030,278
2. Other long-term payables 337 - 71,349,486
D- EQUITY 400 193,909,994,835 194,238,262,630
L. L Owner's equity 410 21 193,909,994,835 194,238,262.,630
. Owner’s contributed capital 411 124,000,000,000 124,000,000,000
- Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 4ila 124,000,000,000 124,000,000,000
2. Share premium 412 27.458,121,096 27,458,121,096
3. Investment and development fund 418 31.164,779.910 30,867,578,606
4. Retained earnings 421 11,287,093,829 11,912,562,928
- Retained earnings accumulated to the prior 42la 1.262,788,848 24510779
vear end
- Retained earnings of the current year 421b 10,024,304,981 11,888,052,149
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 337,194,388,638 343,070,627,074
/ T
[/ //}qu»!/(____.--- //MM// L aE2N
/ *
N -f-;,‘-‘x. P > = o
Nguyen Thi Thu Xuong Vu Hien Linh T Tai The Nghia
Preparer Accounting Supervisor “General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 07 February 2025

The notes set out on pages 8 10 33 are an integral part of these financial siatements
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
FORM B02-DN
Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes Year 2024 Year2023
, Gross revenue from goods sold and oy ygg 01 804,719 2,540,104,817,221
services rendered
2. Deductions 02 271,021,997 410,461,404
3, Dk revemte frm gopds soM and 2,489,000,782,722  2,539,694,355,817
services rendered
4 Cost of sales 11 24 2,348,055,354,753 2,408,082,842,081
g, SER PO T goods skl A g, 140,945,427,069  131,611,513,736
services rendered
6. [Finance income 21 25 4,268,534,210 3.139,480,192
7. Finance expenses 22 26 1,522,171.371 64,161,149
8. Selling expenses 25 27 82,243,794,117 75,103,316,122
9.  General and administration expenses 26 27 49,281,783,286 49,617,007,899
10. Operating profit 30 12,166,213,405 9,966,508,758
11, Other income 31 29 927.491,237 5,954,314,428
12, Other expenses 33 29 339,857,128 582,388,162
13 Profit from other activities 40 587,634,109 5,371.926,266
14, Accounting profit before tax 50 12,753,847,514 15,338,435,024
15, Current corporate income tax expense 51 30 2,729.542.533 3,450.382,875
16. Net profit after corporate income tax 60 10,024,304,981 11,888,052,149
17. Basic earnings per share 70 31 808 724

[t

Nguyen Thi Thu Xuong
Preparer

Ho Chi Minh City, 07 February 2025

Vu Hien Linh
Accounting Supervisor

The notes set out on pages 8 to 33 are an integral part of these financial statements
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
FORM B03-DN
Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Year2024 Year2023
L. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Profit before tax 01 12,753,847,514 15,338,435,024
2. Adfustments for
- Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets and
investment properties 02 8,793,287,588 8,672,822,907
- Provisions 03 2,988.632,084 (4,489,488.945)
- Gain from investing activities 05 (1,082,844,257) (102,000,920)
3. Operating profit before movements in working capital (8 23,452,922,929 19,419,768,066
- Increase, decrease in receivables 09 (9,959,066,334) 9,242 .528,556
- Increase, decrease in inventories 10 19,322,479,893 16,150,972,133
- Increase, decrease in payables (excluding accrued loan
interest and corporate income (ax payable) 11 (6,583,466,672)  (52,335,523,754)
- Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses 12 2,274,567,036 (4,776,119,384)
- Increase, decrease in trading sccurities 13 - -
- Intersting paid 14 - -
- Corporate income tax paid 15 (2,866,049,478) (1,502,842,118)
- Other cash inflows 16 9,180,000 32,000,000
- Other cash outflows 17 (1,816,650,920) (708,374,501}
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 23,833,916,454  (14,477,591,002)
I. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase or construction of fixed assets and other long-
1. term assets 21 (4.313,506431) -
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other long-
2, term assets 22 661,515,885 -
3. Interest and dividend received 27 488,220,492 139,326,440
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 (3,163,761,054) 139,326,440
II. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Dividends and profits paid 36 (7.440,000,000) (3,720,000,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (7,440,000,000) (3,720,000,000)
Net cash flows 50 13,230,155,400  (18,058,204,562)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period 60 34,245,413,092 52,303,677,654

Cash and cash equivalents at the ending of the period

[t

e

Nguyen Thi Thu Xuong
Preparer

47,475,568,492

Vu Hien Linh

Ha Chi Minh City, 07 February 2025

Accounting Supervisor

34,245,413,092

General Director

The notes set out on pages 8 1o 33 are an integral part of these financial statements
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM B09 - DN

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements

i

1.1.

OPERATION CHARACTERISTICS OF ENTERPRISES
Structure of ownership

Thu Duc Trading and Import-Export Joint Stock Company was operated under Business Registration
Certificate No. 4103000025 dated March 27, 2000, issued by the Department of Planning and [nvestment
of Ho Chi Minh City. During its operation, the Company was granted a supplementary Business
Registration Certificate No. 0301444626 for the 21st time on August 1, 2023 by the Department of
Planning and [nvestment of Ho Chi Minh City.

The Company’s charter capital according to the Enterprise Registration Certificate is VND
124,000,000,000.

The company is listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock code TMC,

- PetroVietnam Oil Corporation contributed VNI 63,257,300,000 for 51.01% of the charter capital;
- Ho Chi Minh City Petroleum Company Limited contributed VND 18,471,600,000 for 14.90% of

the charter capital;
- Others contributed VND 42,271,100,000 for 34.09% of the charter capital.

The headquarters office of the Company is located at No. 231, Van Van Ngan Street, Linh Chieu Ward,
Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was 264 (As at 31 December 2023 was 292).
Operating industry and principal activities

= (Gasoline, oil, grease, lubricants dealership;

« (Gasoline transportation business;

* Wholesale of automobiles and other motor vehicles;
* Motorcycle business;

» Restaurant, conference, wedding business;

* Electrical appliances, consumet goods business;

= [ron, steel, construction materials;

* Real estate business,

Normal production and business cycle
The Company's normal production and business cycle is carried out for no more than 12 months.
Comparability of financial statement figures

The information and figures presented in the financial statements as on 31 December 2024 are guaranteed
to be comparable when measured and presented consistently.

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR

The annual accounting period starts on January | and ends on December 31 of the calendar year.
Monetary unit: Vietnamese Dong (VND).

STANDARS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM APPLIE
The financial statements are expressed in Vietnamese Dong (VND) and prepared under the accounting

principles in conformity with the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System issued in pursuance of
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21

O Ems o )
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM BO9 - DN

These notes forin an integral pavt of and should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying financial statemenis

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

March 2016 of Ministry of Finance, Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
financial statements, are as follows:

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for the information related to cash
flows), based on the original price principle, based on the assumption that the company is operating
continuously.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Corporate Accounting System and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the fiscal year. The actual business results could differ
from those estimates and assumptions.

Financial Instruments
Initial Recognition
Financial Assels

According to Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated 06/11/2009 of the Ministry of Finance, financial
assets are classified appropriately, for the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements, into financial
asscts recorded at fair value through the statement of business results, loans and receivables, investments
held to maturity and financial assets available for sale. The Company determines the classification of
these financial assets at the time of initial recognition,

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets are determined at their original cost plus transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of such financial assets. The Company's financial assets
include cash and cash equivalents, trading securities, investments held to maturity, trade receivables, loan
receivables and other receivables.

Financial liabilities

According to Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated 06/11/2009 of the Ministry of Finance, financial
liabilities are classified appropriately, for the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements, into
financial liabilities recorded at fair value through the income statement and financial liabilities determined
at amortized cost. The Company determines the classification of these financial liabilities at the time of
initial recognition,

At the time of initial recognition, financial liabilities are determined at cost plus transaction costs directly
related to the issuance of such financial liabilities, The Company's financial liabilities include trade
payables, accrued expenses, other payables, borrowings and finance lease liabilities.

Value afier initial recognition
The value after initial recognition of financial instruments is reflected at fair value. In cases where there

is no regulation on re-determination of fair value of financial instruments, the fair value is presented at
the carrying amount.

2
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCTAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B09 - DN

These notes form ain infegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet
if, and only if, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash reflects the full existing amount of the Company at the end of the accounting year, comprising cash
on hand, demand deposits and cash in transit.

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with terms less than 03 months since the date of
investment, which can be converted easily into a certain amount of cash without any risk in conversion
into cash at the reporting date and recorded following Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 24 - Cash
flow statement.

Receivables and provision for doubtful debts

Receivables are monitored in detail of the original terms, remaining terms at the reporting date, the
receivable objects, receivable foreign currencies and other factors for the Company’s management
purpose. The classification of receivables are trade receivables and other receivables shall comply with
the principles:

- Trade receivables include commercial receivables incurred from purchase-sale transactions, including
receivables from sale of exported goods under the trust for other entities;

- Other receivables include non-commercial or non-trading receivables, including: receivables from
loan interests, deposit interests. dividends paid and earnings distributed; amount paid on behalf of
another party; receivables which the export truster must collect on behalf of the trustee; receivables
from penalties, compensation; advances; pledges, collaterals, deposits, assets lending...

The company bases on the remaining term at the reporting date receivables to classify as long-term or
short-term.

Receivables are recognized not exceeding the recoverable value. Provision for doubtful debts is made for
receivables that are overdue for six months or more, or when the debtor is in difficulty of solvency due to
dissolution, bankruptey or similar difficulties in accordance with the provisions of the current Corporate
Accounting System.

Inventories

Inventories are determined at historical cost, when the historical cost is greater than the net realizable
value, inventories are measured at net realizable value. Cost comprises the purchase price, processing cost
and other direct attributable expenses that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

The cost of inventories is determined on a weighted average method and recorded on a regular basis. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to
be incurred in marketing and selling.

Provision for devaluation of inventories is the difference between the historical cost and the net realizable
value as at the balance sheet date, which are made in accordance with the provisions of the current
Corporate Accounting System.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The costs of purchased tangible
fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to
their working condition and location for their intended use,

10
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B09 - DN

These notes form an inlegral pavt of and showld be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements

4.8.

4.9.

4,10,

Costs incurred after initial recognition are recorded as increase in the historical cost of assets if they
actually improve the current status in comparison with the initial standard status of the assets, such as:

- Changing parts of tangible fixed assefs increases their useful life, or increases their usable capacity; or
- Improving parts of tangible fixed assets significantly increases the quality of manufactured products;

or

- Applying a new technological process of production reduces the operating costs of assets compared to

hefore.

Expenses incurred for repair and maintenance for the purpose of restoring or maintaining the asset's ability
to bring economic benefits to the original standard operating state, not satisfving one of the above
conditions, shall be recognized in production and business expenses during the year.

Tangible lixed assets are depreciated using the straighi-line method over their estimated useful lives in
accordance with Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 of the Ministry of Finance. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

. Depreciation rate (Year)

Buildings and structures 15-40
Machinery and equipment 6-20
Motor vehicles 10
Office equipment 3-5

Intangible assets and amortization

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization, Tangible fixed asscts are
recognized under the historical cost. Intangible assets that comprise finite and infinite land use rights. The
infinite land use rights are not amortized. The definite land use rights are amortized in straight line method
based on useful life of land lot.

Long - term prepayments

Prepaid expenses include actual expenses that have been incurred but are related to the business
performance of many accounting periods. Long-term prepaid expenses include the value of tools and
equipment allocated for no more than 36 months.

Payables

Payables are monitored in detail by original term, remaining term at the reporting date, payable entity,
type of original currency payable and other factors according to the Company's management needs. The
classification of payables as payables to sellers and other payables is carried out according to the following
principles:

- Payables to sellers include commercial payables arising from purchase-sale transactions, including
payablcs when importing through a consignee;

- Other payables include non-commercial payables, not related to the purchase, sale, or provision of
goods and services, including: Payables for interest; payable dividends and profits; payables for
financial investment activities; payables paid by third parties; amounts received by the consignee from
related parties for payment as specified in the import-export consignment transaction; borrowing assets;
payables for fines and compensation; Assets discovered in excess of unknown cause; payable social
insurance, health insurance, unemployment insurance, union funds; deposits, etc.

The Company classifies the payables as long-term or shori-term based on the remaining term at the
reporting date.
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B(09 - DN

These notes form an iniegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

The payables are recorded at no less than the payment obligation, When there is evidence that a loss is
likely to occur, the Company immediately records a payable in accordance with the prudence principle.

4.11. Finalization of salary fund and salary deductions

The Company is making deductions from the salary fund under the guidance in Circular 28/2016/TT-
BLDTBXH dated 01 September 2016, guiding the implementation of regulations on labor, salary,
remuneration and bonus for the Joint stock company, dominant capital contributed by the State and
guidance of the Vietnam Oil Corporation. During the year, the Company is making deductions from the
salary fund with the amount of 54.76 billion VND. The Company will make the salary fund settlement
when there is an approval decision from Vietnam Oil Corporation - JSC,

4.12. Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses are recognized by the properly estimated cost of goods and services used during the
period due to without or insufficient documents, accounting records.

4.13. Owners’ equity

Owners’capital at the year-end includes shareholders® equity inside and outside of the Company and are
recorded according to pay in capital of shareholders with the par value of the issued shares.

The funds and net profit after tax are provided and distributed in accordance with the resolution of
Shareholders’ Board.

4.14. Revenue and Other income

Revenue is recognized when the sale transactions are measured reliably and the Company received or will
receive economic benefits from these sale transactions.

Revenue from sale of goods shall be recognized if it simultaneously meelts the following five (5)
conditions:

(a) The Company transferred most of the risks and benefits associated with ownership of goods to the
customers;

(b) The Company did not hold the right to manage goods as the owners or the right to control goods;

(¢) The revenue is measured reliably. When the contracts define that the customers are entitled to return
goods purchased under specific conditions, the Company shall only record revenue if such specific
conditions do not exist and the customers are not entitled to return goods (unless the customers are
entitled to return the goods in the form of exchanging for other goods or service);

(d) The Company received or will receive economic benefits from the sale transactions;

(e) The costs related to the sale transactions may be determined.

The turnover of a transaction on rendering of services shall be recognized if it meets all four (4)
Jollowing conditions are satisfied:

(a) Revenue is measured reliably;

(b) The Company received or will receive economic benefits from the sale transactions;

(¢) The completed work is determined at the reporting date;

(d) Incurred costs for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction of providing such services

is determined.

Financial income comprises deposit interest, are measured reliably on the basis of the balance of deposits,
loans and actual interest rates each period.

12
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B09 - DN

These notes form an imtegral part of and should be vead in conjunciion with the accompanying financiel statements

Other income reflects income arising from the events or separate transactions with normal business
operations of the Company, besides the above revenue.

4.15. Taxation
The company is obliged to pay corporate income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable income. Corporate
income tax includes current income tax and deferred income tax.
Current corporate income tax expense is calculated based on taxable income for the year. Taxable income
may be different from the net profit reported in the income statement because the taxable income does
not include income or taxable expenses or is deductible in other years (including carrying holes, if any)
and additionally not including items that are not taxable or not deductible.
The Company's determination of corporate income tax is based on current tax regulations. However, these
regulations are subject to periodic variation and their ultimate determination depends on the results of the
tax authorities' examinations.
Other taxes are applied in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.

4.16. Related parties

The parties are regarded as related parties of the Company if they have the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions or have the same key
management personnel or Jointly managed by another company (the same Group, Corporation).

Individuals with the direct or indirect voting rights can impact significantly to the Company, including
close family members of these individuals (parents, spouses, children, siblings).

[Key management personnel has authority and responsibility for planning, managing and controlling the
operation of the Company: the directors, the managers of the Company and close family members of these
individuals.

The companies managed by these individuals mentioned above with direct or indirect voting rights or
through these rights they can have a significant impact on the Company, including the companies owned
by the leaders or major shareholders of the Company and the companies have the same key management
personnel.

Information about related parties is presented in the Note No. 32.

CASH
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VYND
Cash on hand 1,519,471,759 8,290,084,011
Cash in bank 15,763,239.663 25,845373,081
Cash in transit 192,857,070 109,956,000
Cash equivalents (¥) 30,000,000,000 -
Total 47,475,568,492 34,245,413,092

(*) Term deposits of less than 3 months at Vietnam Export-Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank — Saigon
Branch and Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank — Thu Duc Branch with an interest rate of
4. 7% per yeat,
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FORM B09 - DN

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

o

8

10.

SHORT - TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Binh Duong Multimodal Transport Joint Stock Company
Gemadept- Terminal Link Cai Mep Terminal Joint Stock

Company

Binh Duong Port Corporation
Transimex Logistic Joint Stock Company
Others

Total
In which:
Related parties

SHORT - TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Honda Viet Nam- Branch Ho Chi Minh
Khang Tri Law Company Limited
Others

Total

In which:
Related parties (*)

(*) Details are presented in the Note No, 32,

OTHER SHORT - TERM RECETVABLES

Express Delivery Services Corporation
PetroVietnam Qil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company
Petrovietnam Oil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company
Deposits

Other receivables

Total

In which:
Related parties (*)

(*): Details are presented in the Note No. 32.

DEFICITS IN ASSETS AWAITING SOLUTION

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
10,276,450,290 12.559,970,600
6,071,430,000 5,428,030,000
1,991,519,780 939,610,640
2,575,976,850 1,088,016,930
28,300,374,251 24,730,591,720
49,215,751,171 44,746,219,890

2,611,865,146

907,213,945

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
47,675,101 295,368,052

- 216,000,000

450,168,459 370,936,528
497,843,560 882,304,580

- 143,850

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
6,628,041,254 5,470,539,851

5,331,673,050
3,033,674,149
3,607,043,800
8,694,977,576

2,593,517.923
2,174,182,703
4,384,583.,800
6,703,515,016

27,295,409,829

21,326,339,293

9,963,458,538

5,894,371,354

The balance of the missing assets awaiting processing reflects the value of the fuel and oil shortages at
the time of the inventory conducted at 9:00 AM on May 15, 2023, at Gas Station No. 4, As of the issuance
of this financial report, the Company is still in the process of determining the cause, the responsibility of
individuals, and the information and balances of related items concerning the missing assets mentioned
above, in order to present them to the competent authorities for processing according to regulations.”
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying financial statements

11.

12.

13.

FORM B09 - DN

INVENTORILES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Historical Cost Provision Historical Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Raw materials 132,245,048 - 132,245,048 -
Gas E5 RON 92-11 959,119,678 - 2,161,138,660 -
Gas RON 95 17,516,830.594 - 37.482,339,732 -
Oil DO 0.05%S 15,160,142,313 Z 13,978,962,605 -
Motoreycles and spare parts 11,589,547,272 - 10,750,299,317 -
Steels - - 100,388,366 -
Other goods 1,118,989.610 - 1,193,980,680 -
Total 46,476,874,515 - 65,799,354,408 -
PREPAID EXPENSES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
a) Short- term 519,079,141 927,800,544
Cost of repairing gas stations - 118,358,625
Tools 184,069,984 566,504.424
Cost of leasing gas station 47,355,000 &
Others 287,654,157 242,937,495
b) Long- term 37,883,943,735 39,749,789.,368
Cost of purchasing land use rights at Phu Huu gas station 32,223,837,600 32,945,266.800
Cost of repairing and renovating gas stations 2,934,112,682 4,213,291,204.00
Cost of leasing gas station 1,692,000,000 1,736,000,000
Other 1,033,993,453 855,231,364
Total 38,403,022,876 40,677,589,912
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land use right in Definite land use Total
long term term Software
VND VND VND VND
COST
Asat01/01/2024 20,118,319,636  81,320,628,247 934,240,000 102,373,187,883
Increased during the year 5 g 2 &
Decreased during the year - - - -
Asat31/12/2024 20,118,319,636  81,320,628,247 934,240,000 102,373,187,883
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
Asat01/01/2024 - 23402,151,902 934,240,000 24,336,391,902
Increased during the year - 1,872,030,552 - 1,872,030,552
Depreciation for the year 2 1,872,030,552 1,872,030,552
Decreased during the year - - - -
Asat31/12/2024 - 25274,182,454 934,240,000 26,208,422,454
NET BOOK VALUE
Asat01/01/2024 20,118,319,636 57.918,476,345 - 78,036,795,981
Asat31/12/2024 20,118,319,636  56,046,445,793 - 76,164,765,429
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

15,

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COST
As at 01/01/2024

Increased during the year
Decreased during the year

Asat31/12/2024

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at 01/01/2024

Increased during the year
Depreciation for the year

Decreases

As at 31/12/2024

NET BOOK VALUE
Asat 01/01/2024

Asat31/12/2024

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Remaining value of business cooperation assets (*)

Total

FORM B0Y - DN

Buildings, structures Total
VND VND
12,203,241,726 12,203,241,726
12,203,241,726 12,203,241,726
6,694,605,184 6,694,605,184
486,056,172 486,056,172
486,056,172 486,056,172
7,180,661,356 7,180,661,356
5,508,636,542 5,508,636,542
5,022,580,370 5,022,580,370

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

348,371,345 385,096,865

348,371,345 385,696,865

(*) The remaining value of assets used to implement the business cooperation contract number
32/HPHTKD dated February 8, 2002, and the appendix contract number 19 dated November 2, 2021,
with the Ho Chi Minh City Union of Consumer Cooperatives. Form of business cooperation: Joint venture
assets with joint control (no new legal entity formed). The Ho Chi Minh City Union of Consumer
Cooperatives manages and records the business activities. The project duration is 30 years. The assets
provided by the company for the project include the land use rights and assets on land at 191 Quang

Trung, Hiep Phu Ward, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City,"
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FORM B09 - DN

These notes form an integral part of and shoutd be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements

19. OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES

Short-term deposits, collateral received
Others

Total
In which:

Related parties (*)

(*) Details are presented in the Note No. 32

20, UNREALIZED TURNOVER

Sai Gon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
advanced payment for Investment Property Rental

Total

21

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

VND
8,608,663,840
16,544,180.366

VND
7,026,354,440
16,914,089,870

25,152,844,206 23,940,444,310
14,249,057,390 12,629,500,129
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
14,014,848,454 17,018,030,278
14,014,848,454 17,018,030,278
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B09 - DN
These notes jorm an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial siatements

Details of the owner's contributed capital

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VYND Yo VND %o
PetroVietnam Oil Corporation - JSC 63,257,300,000 51.01% 63,257,300,000  51.01%
PetroVietnam Oil Sai Gon JSC 18,471,600,000 14.90% 18,471,600,000 14.90%
Others 42,271,100,000 34.09% 42,271,100,000  34.09%
Total 124,000,000,000 100%  124,000,000,000 100%
Shares:
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Number of shares registered for issuance 12,400,000 12,400,000
Number of shares sold to the public 12,400,000 12,400,000
- Common stock 12,400,000 12,400,000
Qutstanding shares 12,400,000 12,400,000
- Common stock 12,400,000 12,400,000
* Face Value (VND/Shares): 10,000 10,000
22.  OFF - BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Goods for keeping (Unit: Liter 15) 246,082 118,782
- Qil DO 0.05%S5 94,390 16,127
- Gas RON 95 149,934 74,651
- Gas ES RON 92-11 1,758 28,004
23. REVENUE
Year2024 Year2023
VND VND
Revenue from gasoline and lubricants 2,398.309,639,579  2.434.017,888,993

Revenue from RON Y3 gasoline
Revenite firom DO (.05%S oil
Revenue from E5 RON 92-11 gasoline
Revenue from lubricants

1,469.013,158,302
797.114,278,476
127,387,411,572
4.794,791,229

1,500,971,356,083
744,071,317,731
183,886,531,967
5,082,601,957

Revenue from motorbikes 76,366,963,560 84,259,518,095
Revenue from steel 103,613,205 6,983,708,034
Revenue from leasing premises and others 14,491,588,369 14,843,702,099
Total 2,489,271,804,719  2,540,104,817,221
Deductions 271,021,997 410,461,404
Net revenues from sales of goods and rendering of

services 2,489,000,782,722  2,539,694,355,817
In which:

Related pearties (%) 6,0069,205,466 2,129,596,890

(*) Details are presented in the Note No. 32.
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THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

These noles form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

24,

28,

26.

27.

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of gasoline and lubricants sold
Cost of RON 93 gasoline sold

Cost of DO 0.05%S oil sald

Cost of E5S RON 92-11 gasoline sold
Cost of KO oil sold

Cost of lubricants sold

Cost of motorbikes sold

Cost of steel sold

Cost of leasing premises and others

Total

FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest on bank deposits

Dividends, distributed profits
Revenue from business cooperation
Others

Total

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Provision for financial investments
Reversal of provision
Others

Total

FORM B09 - DN

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND
2,279.862,921,718 2,324,668,671,915
1,399,090,416,484 1,435,490,126,884

755,374,044.,649
121,408,063,330

3,990,397.255

710,136,226,982
174,809,090,776
6,931,317

SELLING EXPENSES AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Selling expenses
Labor costs

Raw material, tool and equipment costs

Depreciation and amortisation costs
Expenses from external services
Other expenses by cash
Administration expenses

Labor costs

Raw material, tool and equipment costs

Depreciation and amortisation costs
Provision expenses

Expenses from external services
Other expenses by cash

4,226,205,956

65,462,770,312 T4,376,314,513
100,388,366 6,611,466,617
2,629,274,357 2,426,389,036
2,348,055,354,753  2,408,082,842,081
Year2024 Year 2023
VND VND
378,459,492 88,276,440
109,770,000 51,050,000
2,681,274,540 2,733,722, 478
1,099.030,178 266,431,274
4,268,534,210 3,139,480,192
Year2024 Year 2023
VND VYND

26,280 43,243,420
1,493,389,026 (11,583,361)
28,756,065 32,501,090
1,522,171,371 64,161,149
Year2024 Year2023
YIND YND
82,243,794,117 75,103,316,122

39.972,494.125
4,941,175,292
6,136,156,083
27,351,370,733
3,842,597,884
49,281,783,286
27,711,414,678
1,065,804,385
27,857,148
1,495,216,778
14,286,702,661
4,694,787,636

43,906,513,396
5,989,225,330
6,218,576,723
16,457,911,059
2,531,089,614
49,617,007,899
27,201,806,613
1.414,315,845
27,857,148
235,851,000
13,342,788,861
7.394,388,432
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28.

29,

30.

31,

FACTOR EXPENSES

Raw material, tool and equipment costs
Labor costs

Depreciation and amortisation costs
Expenses from external services
Provision expenses

Other expenses by cash

Total

OTHER INCOME, OTHER EXPENSES

Other income

Gain from liquidation, disposal of fixed assets
Refund of Environmental Protection Risk Fund
Trade discount

Others

Other expenses

Remuneration of the Board of Directors

Others

Others

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Net profit before tax

- Non-deductible expenses
-Tax-exempt income

Taxable income

Taxable income

Current corporate income tax rates
Tax arrears from the previous year

Current corporate income tax expense

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit after tax

Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund

Profit for the period allocated to commeon stockholders
Average number of outstanding common shares in
circulation in the year

Earning per shares (VND/shares)

25

Year 2024 Year2023
VND VND
6,006,979,677 7,403,541,175
67,683,908,803 71,108,320,009
8,793,287,588 8,672,822,907

41,638,073,394
1,495,216,778

29,800,699,920
235,851,000

10,024,304,981

12,400,000

8,537,385.520 9,925,478,046
134,154,851,760 127,146,713,057
Year 2024 Year2023
VND VND
927,491,237 5,954,314,428
661,515,885 -

u 4,757,000,000

116,527,564 474,309,870
149,447,788 723,004,558
339,857,128 582,388,162
288,000,000 234,000,000
51,857,128 348,388,162
587,634,109 5,371,926,266
Year2024 Year2023
VND YND
12,753,847,514 15,338,435,024
1,003,635,160 426,281,376
109,770,000 51,050,000
13,647.712,674 15,713,666,400
13,647,712,674 15,713,666,400
20% 20%

- 307,649,592
2,729,542,533 3,450,382,875
Year2024 Year 2023
VYND VND
10,024,304,981 11,888,052,149
- (2,912,572,776)

8,975,479,373

12,400,000
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32.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has not distributed 2024 profits, whereby 2024 underlying
earnings per share may be adjusted, subject to the deduction of Company funds from after-tax profits after
approval at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The basic earnings on shares in 2023 have been
restated due to the impact of the distribution of 2023 profits in accordance with Resolution No. 06/-TMC-

FORM B09 - DN

DHDCD dated 29 March 2024 of the General Meeting of Shareholder.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
The company has the following relatedparties:

Related parties

Relationship

PetroVietnam Qi Corporation - JSC

Hochiminh City Petroleum Company Limited

PetroVietnam Qil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company

PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company

PetroVietnam Oil Phu Tho Joint Stock Company
PetroVietnam Qil Nam Dinh Joint Stock Company
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Tau Joint Stock Company
PetroVietnam Qil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company

PetroVietnam Qil Binh Thuan Joint Stock Company

Technical Trading and [nvestment Joint Stock Company
PetroVietnam Qil Vung Ang Joint Stock Company

PV OIL Hai Phong Joint Stock Company

Mekong Petroleum Joint Stock Company

PetroVietnam Oil Thai Binh Joint Stock Company
PetroVietNam Qil Thanh Hoa - One - Member Limited Company
PetroVietnam Qil Tay Ninh Joint Stock Company
PetroVietnam Qil Cai Lan Joint Stock Company

Vietnam Petroleum Qil Transport Company Limited
PetroVietNam il Bac Lieu - One - Member Limited Company
PetroVietNam Oil Tra Vinh - One - Member Limited Company
PVOIL Lubricants Joint Stock Company

26

Parent company
Shareholder

The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
The same Parent company
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

Balance with related parties

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Other short-term receivables 9,963,458,538 5,894,371,354
PetroVietnam Oil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company 3.033,674,149 2.174,182,703
PetroVietnam Oil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company 5,331,673,050 2,593,517,923
Mekong Petroleum Joint Stock Company 980,100,517 975,974,880
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Ang loint Stock Company 316,330,406 91,068,498
Vietnam Petroleum Qil Transport Company Limited 144,652,130 -
Technical Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company 125,107,790 -
PV OIL Hai Phong Joint Stock Company 3,901,710 -
PetroVietnam Qil Phu Tho Joint Stock Company 9,537,580 9,834,660
PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company 7,243,990 2,539,460
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Tau Joint Stock Company 11,237,216 38,990,770
PetroVietnam Oil Thai Binh Joint Stock Company - 8,262,460
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Other short-term payables 14,249,057,390 12,629,500,129
PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company 2,372,540,739 3,179,842,620
PetroVietnam Oil Phu Tho Joint Stock Company 1,599,984,120 2,040,065,995
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Tau Joint Stock Company 619,329410 528,789,730

PetroVietnam Oil Nam Dinh Joint Stock Company

1.477,798,970

1,114,852,680

Saigon Phu Yen Petroleum Joint Stock Company 1,283,173,870 727,384,910
PetroVietnam Oil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company 1,027,549,174 1,159,445,410
PetroVietnam Oil Binh Thuan Joint Stock Company 129,644,650 198,574,800
Mekong Petroleum Joint Stock Company 1,022,026,453 901,404,919
PetroVietnam Oil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company 577,650,141 317,374,389
Technical Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company 2,403,189,005 1.458,098,288
PetroVietnam Qil YVung Ang Joint Stock Company 1,207,486,588 422,453,568
PV OIL Hai Phong Joint Stock Company 118,846,030 197,523,750
PetroVietnam Qil Thai Binh Joint Stock Company 209,456,270 153,080,460
: : ; i i X
PetroVietNam Qil Thanh Hoa - One - Member Limited 27.815.530 26,041,550
Company
PetroVietnam Oil Tay Ninh Joint Stock Company 158,571,160 150,273,550
PetroVietNam il Bac Lieu - One - Member Limited 13,450,480 4,803,540
Company
PetroVieinam Qil Cai Lan Joint Stock Company 544,800 49 489,970
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term receivables 2,611,865,146 907,213,945
Vietnam Petroleum Oil Transport Company Limited 1,701,810,000 -
PetroVietnam Oil Corporation - ISC 471,702,000 471,702,000
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Ang Joint Stock Company 157,199,484 213,451,535
PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company 281,153,662 -
PetroVietNam Oil Thanh Hoa - One - Member Limited } 222,060,410
Company
Prepayment to Seller - 143,850
PetroVietnam Oil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company - 143,850
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024

Transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Year2024 Year2023
VND VND
Sales 6,069,205,460 2,129,596,890
PetroVietnam Qil Corporation - JSC 649,794,078 15,267,726
PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company 825,560,171 618,742,849
Saigon Phu Yen Petroleum Joint Stock Company 70,496,698 45,419,592
PetroVietnam Oil Phu Tho Joint Stock Company 118,226,473 149,538,837
PetroVietnam Oil Nam Dinh Joint Stock Company 70,559,814 68,646,681
PetroVietnam Qil Vung Tau Joint Stock Company 52,237.510 54,691,437
PetroVietnam Qil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company 102,079,558 87,284,789
PetroVietnam Qil Binh Thuan Joint Stock Company 11,198,298 23.379.338
Technical Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company 146,954,734 76,880,009
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Ang Joint Stock Company 399,752,419 476,762,512
PV OIL Hai Phong Joint Stock Company 11,593,485 19,964,591
Mekong Petroleum Joint Stock Company 79,973,797 49,050,011
PetroVietnam Qil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company 28,480,643 20,930,632
PetroVietnam Oil Thai Binh Joint Stock Company 14,538,682 12,088,226
PetroVietNam Qil Thanh Hoa - One - Member Limited 459,121,834 210,390,577
Company
PetroVietnam Oil Tay Ninh Joint Stock Company 12,405,702 8,309,590
PetroVietnam Oil Cai Lan Joint Stock Company 3,868,520 1,373,727
PetroVietNam Qil Bac Lieu - One - Member Limited 593.997 181364
Company
PetroVietNam Oil Tra Vinh - One - Member Limited 101,453 190,054
Company
Vietnam Petroleum Oil Transport Company Limited 2.933,619916 131,399,565
PVOIL Lubricants Joint Stock Company 78,047,684 59,104,783
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Year2024 Year2023
VND VND
Purchases 2,252,000,463,608 2,299,134,187,969
PetroVietnam Oil Corporation - ISC 1,443,218,190 357,067,130
PetroVietnam Oil Sai Gon Joint Stock Company 1.856,871,760,816 1,830,890,405,147
Hochiminh City Petroleum Company Limited 279,493,942,721 297,919,890,455
Technical Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company 65,335,014,009 113,597,844,394
PetroVietnam Qil Vung Tau Joint Stock Company 1,213,512 1,083,289,238
PV OIL Mien Trung Joint Stock Company 4,012,185.916 9,089.612,881
PV OIL Hai Phong Joint Stock Company 348,955 68,182
Mekong Petroleum Joint Stock Company 107,574,127 68.562,35]
PetroVietnam Oil Vung Ang Joint Stock Company 8,299,425,648 11,457,155,919
PetroVietNam Qil Thanh Hoa 351,409 1,221,273

Vietnam Petroleum Oil Transport Company Limited
PetroVietNam Qil Thanh Hoa - One -~ Member Limited

7.230,393,276

1,757,770,565

: - 3,839,243
Company
Saigon Phu Yen Petroleum Joint Stock Company - 1,489,652,437
PetroVietnam Oil Phu The Joint Stock Company 6,826,739.644 56,025,056
PetroVietnam Oil Binh Thuan Joint Stock Company . 17,013,299
PVOIL Lubricants Joint Stock Company 17.974,587.,548 3,640,097.249
PetroVietnam Qil Tay Ninh Joint Stock Company - 17,190,181,819
PetroVietnam Qil Thai Binh Joint Stock Company 222,545 432,303

PetroVietNam Oil Tra Vinh - One - Member Limited
Company

4,204,545,455

10,359,090,909

PetroVietnam Oil Ha Noi Joint Stock Company 198,939,837 154,968,119
Income of the Board of Directors and Board of Management:
Year2024 Year 2023
VND VND
The Board of Management Position 1,164,825,635 821,271,982
Do Hoang Phuc Ex-Chairman of the Board 587,132,611 638,979,982
Nguyen Duc Thang Chairman of the Board 314,835,024 -
Nguyen Quoc Cuong Member 90,630,000 70,896,000
Tran Cong Lanh Member 90,630,000 55,713,000.00
Pham Xuan Phong Member 81,598,000 40,500,000.00
Huynh Ngoc Thanh Ex-member - 15,183,000
The Board of Director Position 3,392,172,879 2,122,653,145
Lai The Nghia Director, member of the Board 1,064,990.466 290,088,902
Hoang Dinh Son i s 30,107,000 373,538,280
Bui Minh Hiep Deputy Director 729,993,293 456,586,400
Nghiem Thi Thanh Mai Deputy Director 807,340,750 516,742,798
Nguyen Anh Tuan Deputy Director 759,741,370 485,696,765
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Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Board of Supervisors Position 677,249,484 529,800,592
Nguyen Trong Binh Head of the Supervisory Board 297,368,682 -
Nguyen Thi My Dung ::;:T;l BEC SRR 247,566,302 308,888,592
Nguyen Thanh Binh Member 64,350,500 61,620,000
Ngo Phuong Hanh Member 55,318,500 27,000,000
Pham Khac Vu Thuy Ex-member 0,323,000 21,146,000
Nguyen Phu Khanh Ex-member 6,322,500 21,146,000
Chief Accountant Position 622,672,046 396,805,592
Vu Hien Linh Chief Accounting 622,672,046 385,140,592
Vien Thien Khanh Ex- Chief Accountant s 11,665,000

33,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of its debt and equity balances.
The Company’s capital structure comprises equity (comprising contributed capital, reserves and retained

earnings).

Types of financial instruments

Details of the Company’s significant accounting policies and methods (including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis for recognition of income and expenses) for each type
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 4.

Carrying amounts

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 47,475,568.492 34,245,413,092
Trade receivables in short-term 77,288,855,290 68.345,470,251
Total 124,764,423,782 102,590,883,343
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 84,262,913,002 86,684,247,608

Other payables in short-term 25,152,844,206 23,940,444,310
Other payables in long-term - 71,349,486
Total 110,422,096,108 110,696,041,404

The Company presents and explains financial instruments in accordance with Circular No. 210/2009/TT-
BTC dated November 6, 2009 of the Ministry of Finance. This Circular guides the application of
international accounting 30tandard son the presentation of financial statements and disclosure of
information for financial instruments but does not provide specific guidance for the assessment and
recognition of financial instruments at fair value. The Company has presented the fair value of financial
instruments in accordance with the guidance on disclosure of financial statements in Circular No.
20022014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 of the Ministry of Finance in some of the above notes.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives

Financial risks include market risk (including price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk of
cash flows. The Company does not hedge these risks due to the lack of a market for these financial
instruments.

Market Risk

Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Company has no exchange rate risk due to the absence of foreign currency transactions.
Commodity Price Risk Management

The Company trades in petroleum products that are heavily dependent on world price fluctuations and are
purchased from the Vietnam Oil Corporation, so the Company may be exposed to many risks of input
price fluctuations. The Company has not been able to apply the necessary tools to mitigate these risks
because Vietnam does not have a market, in addition to setting up provisions for inventory price
reductions,

Credit Risk

Credit risk occurs when a customer or counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations, resulting in a
financial loss to the Company. The Company has appropriate policies and regularly monitors the situation
to assess whether the Company is exposed to credit risk, The maximum credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the allowance for doubtful debts as at 31 December 2024,

Liquidity Risk Management

The purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure that funds are available to meet current and future
financial obligations. Liquidity is also managed by the Company to ensure that the excess of liabilities
maturing over assets maturing during the period is at a manageable level relative to the amount of funds
the Company believes it can generate during that period. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient reserves of
cash, borrowings and adequate committed funding from its owners to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. The table below details the Company's remaining contractual maturities for its
non-derivative financial liabilities and their agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company
can be required to pay.

Under 1 year From1to5 Total
years
VND VND VND
Asat01/01/2024
Trade payables 860,084,247,608 - 86,6084,247,608
Other payables in short-term 23,940,444 310 - 23,940,444 310
Other payables in long-term - 71,349 486 71,349 486
Total 110,624,691,918 71,349,486  110,696,041,404
Asat 31/12/2024
Trade payables 84,262,913,002 - 84,262,913,002
Other payables in short-term 25,152,844,206 - 25,152,844,206
Total 110,422,096,108 - 110,422,096,108

The Board of Directors assesses the level of concentration of liquidity risk as low. The Board of Directors
believes that the Company will be able to generate sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due.
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34.

35,

The following table details the maturity profile for non-derivative financial assets. The table has been
prepared based on the undiscounted contractual maturity of the financial assets including interest that will
be earned on those assets, if any. The presentation of information on non-derivative financial assets is
necessary to demonstrate the Company's liquidity risk management as liquidity is managed on a net asset
and liability basis,

Under 1 year From 1 to 5 Total
years
VND VND VND
Asat01/01/2024
Cash and cash equivalents 34,245413,092 - 34,245,413,092
Trade receivables and other receivables 68,345,470,251 . 68,345,470,251
Total 102,590,883,343 - 102,590,883,343
Asat31/12/2024
Cash and cash equivalents 17,475.,568,492 - 17,475,568,492
Trade receivables in short-lerm 77,288,855,290 - 77,288.855,290
Total 94,764,423,782 - 94,764,423,782

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT REPORT

Segment reporting by business area:

Year2024 Year2023

Net revenue Cost of good sold Net revenue  Cost of good sold

VND VND VND VND

Gasoline, lube  2,398,050,538,036  2,279,862,921,718  2,433,639,127,224 2,324,668,671,915
Motorbikes 76,355,043,112 65.462,770,312 84.227.818.460 74,376,314,513
Steels 103,613,205 100,388,366 6.983,708,034 6,611,466,617
Others 14,491.588.369 2,629,274,357 14.843,702,099 2,426,389,036
Total 2,489,000,782,722  2,348,055,354,753  2,539,694,355,817 2,408,082,842,081

Segment reporting by geographical area

Geographically, the Company operates only within the territory of Vietnam. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors has assessed and believes that not preparing and presenting segment reporting by business sector
and geographical area in the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024 is in accordance
with the provisions of Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 “Segment reporting” and is consistent
with the current business situation of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant events occurring after Balance Sheet date that requires adjustments or disclosures on the
financial statements for yvear ended 31 December 2024,

32

N ¥

P S



THU DUC TRADING AND IMPORT EXPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2024
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FORM B(9 - DN

These notes form an imegral part af and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are the figures on the (inancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
that were audited by An Viet Auditing Company Limited.

XUAT NHAR fHA

THU DECY A
e S N\ TIAEXCTLA
Nguyen Thi Thu Xuong Vu Hien Linh g = he Nghia
Preparer

Accounting Supervisor ~==eneral Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 07 February 20235
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